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Pereonally appeared before me, the undersigned, an officer authorized
by law to administer oathe, one Warren Arthur Minton, Captain, Cavalry, Army
of the United States, who, being duly sworn, deposes and says: =

“I certify that I am Warren Awhur Minton, 0-362251, Captain, Cavalry,
Army of the United States, with residence in the United States at 219 West
Kevada Street, EL Faso, Texas;

That I desire to give this statement which covere my knowledge of fhe
activities end plans of Lieut-Colonel Zverett Lownen Werner, 0-125572, Field
Artillery, Atny of the United States, and Commsnding Officer Fourtheenth
Infantry, Philippine Army, USATEE, to which Regiment I was sseigned from
Troop "G" 26th Cavalry (ES) and served as Commanding Officer First Bettalion,
algo ae Adjutant;

That my reason for submitting this affidavit is that I desize to con-
firm the Teport of his activities thet I know Licut-Colonel Werner has writ-
ten personally and truthfully, and to offset and overcome if possible certain
nisrepresentations that one United States Army officer and one or two Fhilip=
pine Army officers, through envy perhaps or deire for each his own respective
personsl glory, have tried to make against Lieut-Colonel Warmer, some of
these misrepresentations having taken place directly within my knowledge and
observation;

That I firet became personally scquainted with Lieut-Colonel Warner
while he was & ajor Field Artgglery and on detached service at Camp John Hay,
P. L., from the Provisional Field Artillery Brigade, Philippine Scouts, Fort
Stotsenburg. Our first meeting was at Lusod Sew-mill, Benguet, Mountain Prov-
ince, December 26, 1941 upon the occasion of the ordered evacuation from Cemp
John Eey of our Forces; that at Lugod Saw-mill Hajor Werner received from
Lieut-Colonel John P. Horan, lete Commanding Officer at Camp John HMy, verbal
orders to precede him (Colonel Horan with troops of the 43rd Infantry, P. S.)
over the mountain trail to the eaet and when reaching Aritao, Nueva Viscaya
Province, to inform him (Lieut-Colonel Horan) whether or not the rosd (National
Route Number Five) was free of enemy troope to the south and whether there was
traneportation available to move him and the troops with him, south; that
Mjor Werner carried out this mission endeavoring to keep contact with Lietm
Golonel Horan and that near Kayapa Lieut-Colonel Horan, about 60 kilometers
behind Major Warmer, without sdvising or werning kajor Warner, turned and pro-
ceeded southeast through Imugan towsrd Belete Pass, and there to Road Five;

That Jepanese forces at midnight December 28th, 1941, occupied San Jose,
Nueve Beija, end prevented all movement south of our Forces which Msjor warner
mede effort to advise Lieut-Colonel Horan concerning, he (Major Warner) having
reached Aritao early on dhe aftermoon of December 29th, 1941;

That on January lst, 1942, Lieut~Colonel Horan with a portion of his
troope and two of his officer personnel, nemely Captsine Leo Gitter and Cameron
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Starnes, came north through Aritao and expressed to Captain Manusl P. Enriquez,
11th Divieion Staff, Fhilippine Apmy, thet he Aid not desire Msjor Warnsr now
to report to (Colonel Horan) but to adv: jor Warner to carry om with
his work in cherge of Fhilippine Army troops; that Lieut-Colonel Foran then
moved north and spent the night of Januery lst with us - Troop "GN 26th Cavale
Ty, Fu S., 8t Pambang - about twelve kilometers north of Major Warner's posi-
tion, then moved moTth to Kiangan, Ifugeo, Mountain Province;

That 18jor Werner meantime just prior to and upon arriving in Aritsc on
the afternoon of December 29, 1941, came upon several hundred cut off troop=-
units of the Philippine Army, some of whom said that their commsnding officers
had disbanded them snd directed them to proceed to their homes; that Major
Warner after making effort to contact Lieut-Colonel Horan with the newe of the
Japanese occupation of San Jose to the south, took charge of the loose Fhilip-
pine Army-elements, ordering them to remsin urnder himself until further definite
information and orders could be obtained;

Thet in command of the advance party of my troop ("C" 26th Cavalry, B.S.)
I preceded that troop over the trail just behind Major Warner's party, arrived
in Ariteo just behind him and met and talked with him in Aritao where I learned
and could observe what he was doing; that I considered his efforts to be well
worth while and of importance to the aid of both law, order and good morale of
both soldiers and citizens n Nueva Ecija;

Thet Major Warner obtained and erected on or about January 9, 1942, a
transmitting and receiving radio with which it contacted our High Command and
reported the situation as it concerned those of our forces which to lis knowledge
were at off from proceeding south and were now in proximity to him; that
General MacArthur replied by radiogram dated January 13th authorizing Mejor
werner to operate support trenches in the hills, directing him to send infor=
mation by every possible means and authorizing him to organize the troeps to
meet his needs; that shortly following, General MacApthur authorized Msjor
Warner to sign chits for legitimate expenses for subsistence and other necessi-
ties for his troops; that later General MacArthur commended Major Warner for
his energetic action in north Luzon and on February 12th by paragraph 4, Spe=
cial orders 22, promoted Major Warner to Licut-Colonel;

That I joined Major VWarmer with & portion of Troop "C" 2¢th Cavalry (PS)
and about 250 Filipinos (eome slresdy in the Philippine army) under my command
and Major Werner placed me in commsnd of his Frovisionsl First Battalion where
he had originally intended to place lajor Ralph B. Praeger, Cavelry; that on
Februery 14, 1942, with a strength of 1600 or over, Lieut-Colonel Warnerts
command was officially designated by General MacArthur - the Fourteenth Infene
try, Philippine Army - with such Fhilippine Scoute and Americens ae were with
us, attached;

st T was the £iret American commissioned officer to join with Lisute
Golonel Warner - while he was still & ajor - and as much as were such fogethor
in conference, on recomnaissance &nl in operations; that Lisub-Colomel Wasmer
took me at all times into his confidence 8nd that I believe T know better than
anyone elee his plens and purposes in all of hic decisions and sctions; that

I remsined with hin through surrender and was taken out of prison oamp with
him by the Japaness Army to force the surrender of cortain’elemefts of the l4th

s
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That short of ammunition, automatic and heavy weapons as we were, also
individusl equipment and medicine, Licut-Colonel Warner inspired snd held
together the regiment when mo other officer therein, I believe, could have
done co; that his attitude to both his troobs and to the civilian populstion
was one of always extreme fairness and that I believe he has the love and
respect of a1l the right thirking officers, enlisted men and civilians who
knew him; that I have heard Filipino Army officers tell him that Filipimos
particulerly liked him and I have heard his kindness preised by Spaniards amd
Filipinos alike;

That Lieut-Colonel Warnerfs policy wae to keep up the morsle of both the
troops end the civilian population by assisting the people to preserve law
and order through their own provinciel and municipal officials without declar-
ing martial law, and by letting them know that his troops were there to help
and not to bring suffering to them; that he likewise strongly adviced and en-
coureged the officiale to remain in office end to thereby serve their people
rather than to evacuate in the path of the incoming Japanese forces and thereby
bring into power those who had not the interests of the citizens at heart first;
that in some instances the Japanese Army permitted to remain or appointed to
office certain citizens that Lieut-Colonel Warmer had previously urged to serve,
in other instances this was dismetrically the opposite;

Taat first for Governor Quirino of Nueve Viscays, then later for Governor
Visaya of Isabels and for Governor Adduru of Cagayan, Lieut-Colonel lWerner,
over the Regimental radio, contacted President Manuel L, Quezon with respec—
tive problems of each and returned to these officials President Quezon's return
reply or sclution with authority to act; that emergency seript currency, for
one thing, wae suthorized, and that in another inctance Lieut-Colonel Werner
had & circuit judgeship, which was vacated by death in Isabela Frovince, refilled
by Fresidential appointment so that mumsrous prisoners in jeil overlong awaiting
trial could be properly tried and other cases on the docket disposed of legally
and officially; that in addition, Lieut-Colonel Werner inducted into USAFFE such
Constabulery elements as were within his contect, reinforced them where necessary
and requested permission of our High Command that he be permitted to use the
Constabulary in civil law enforcement where possible and not in the battle-line
unless nscessary; that General MacArthur spproved this and informed Iieut-Golonel
Wermr that such policy was in keeping with the plan of the High Command;

Tat it is evidenced that the civil population thought well of Lisut-Colo-
nel Warner in that the Governing Commission of Nueva Vizeaya Frovince - the
Governor, Provincial Treasurer and Third Member, officially named and vecorded
the adjacent valley (of the Addalam River) west, to the southern portion of the
Cageysn River valley, end called for a period of time the Kong Kong Valley =
officially nemed this valley the Wermer Valley; that Third Member Leandro Rosario

y informed him that the province wished to make him & precent of & strip
iberland in this valley, end stated that an official letter would come
confirming 811 of this; that Jepanese occupation, however, shortly after this,
prevented completion of this plen end the ceremonies that were to teke place
concerning 1t;

Tin t Lieut-Colonel Wsrmer in his capacity as Regimental Commander fre—
quently called meetings of provineisl and municipal officials of Nueve Viscaya,
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Tsabela and Cagayan Provinces to discuss with them matters of importance
pertaining to the well-being of the people and the relationshipe of troops
toward civilians &nd vice verss; that at such s meting in March Lieute
Colomel Warner advised the increased planting of food in place of the large
tobacco planting usually done, and advised that should Japanese occupation
occur, the people to remain in their homes and accept gracefully end without
resistance the ememy'e occupation provided that by such time our forces had
not received additional help from the United Stetes, nor have help near in
sight;

That becsuse of inebility to send help in the form of ammunition,
automatic weapons and medicines in the quantities requested, General Mac—
Arthur directed Licut-Colonel WarnsT not to fight ememy forces that could
overpower and destroy his own but to harsss and to contact smell patrols
that could be overpowered; that in this same message General NacArthur told
Lieut-Colonel Warzer that his emergetic sction pleased him (General Mac-
Arthur) greatly and commended him (Lieut-Colonel Warner) and his entire
command;

Tuat unless he believed it to be of importance to the cause, Lieut-
Colomel isrner after some earlicr demonstrations of retaliation on towns
and barrios by plenes, made effort to guide harassing missions to points not
too near & community and that after the bombings of Pagabeg and Esyombong
by enemy planes in an effort to destroy our troops, Lieut-Colonmel Warner and
I made an extended reconnaiseance of positions in wooded aress where we
constructed our own comps and sir-landing field; thet, in all, the Regiment
constructed four camps, two air-lending fields and s ship dock or pier in
the Casiguran Bay - two of the camps, the air fields and dock construction
being under my direct supervision; that the First Eattalion under my command
bad the largest strength of personnel, reschig @t one time 800 and over and
this being my battalion I used soldierlabor in hours that would not inter-
fere with arill ard militery training; that we planned and were soon to be
Teady on construction of good trails esst from our positions over the Sierra
Madre Mounteins to the Casiguran Buy where, if help and supplies could come
by boat, we could use my 300-pony pack train with pack carriers we had cons-
tructed for them;

Thet both Lieut-Colonel Warner and I believed thet 21l of these ins-
tallations and more that we had in mind would be of value to our forces when,
if, and as additional help came and Lieut-Colonel Warmer requested of our High
Commend numerous times that a plane come and land where we had prepared a
suiteble field sxd bring along a Staff officer to report on what we had
sccompliched o thet our High Comnand could direct ue whether to contfnue or
not our program of expeneion;

That upon completion of my Battalion's mein camp near Sinuanguan Forte
barrio (but hidden in & huge bamboo grove south of this place) snd cur first
air-lending field in the barrio Palatisn and Sinuanguan Sur area, Lisut-
Golonel Warner backed my plan end suggestion to hold & review, competitive
drill exhibition and field dey and to invite the public, this we did on March
4, 1942 and the day proved highly successful. The review, drills and athle-
tics were full of spirit, the camp was adnired and the results of everything
were highly favorable to the morale of both soBiers and citizens of whom:
there about 8000 present; that no Japanese plames flew overhead during the
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day though we could have hidden moet of the crowd from view had they come;

At after the Tuguegarao attack of Januery 13th, in which I and my
Philippine Scout troops participated as did all of Troop "GV 26th Gavalry
(PS), meny Filipino Reservists mot before able to report for duty, and
volunteers, came to join us; that Lieut~Colonel Warrer, wishing to gain
results from the training of our Scouts, designated most of the recruit
training to my Battalion; that were obliged on March 15th, however, by
direct order from higher autliority, to discharge atout 500 men after two
moaths of the best training we were able to give them with our limited
equipnent and ammunition, and that upon discharging them we gave each &
certificate attesting to 'his training;

That, as before mentioned, Lieut-Colonel Warner maintained contact
between President Quezon and the Provincial Governmente of Cagayan, Isabela
and Nueva Viscaya Provinces;

That during activities end operations in north Luzon prior to the or-
dered surrender of our Forces we were able to recapture from the enemy cer-
tain loot in the form of dry-goods drese material and & truckload of salt;
that this was all distributed to Filipino citizens who needed it; that,
further, certain funds were taken from the enemy powers that were in Nueva
Viscaya and returned to Chinese merchants who had been forced to pay a
weekly indemnity thereto; that it ie believed Lieut-Colonel Warner will
cover these items in his report;

That Li Warber on his officers and men
‘the necessity of reporting promptly worthwhile activity and news and the
importance of making truthful end mot exaggerated reports; that to facilitate
news Treeching our headguarters quickly from intelligence and combat patrols
gent out, Ljeut-Colonel Wermer succeeded in procuring some carrier plgeons;
that these were about ready to put into use when the surrender of our foreas
was ordered; 2

That s time went on without help coming, Lisut-Colonel Warner doubted
the abllity of our forces in Bataan to hold so that he and I made some plans
together; that, in addition to the four well-hidden camps ard the air field
we had constructed in the south Cegayan River Valley, we constructed near
Gasiguran & second air-landing field and in the Casiguran Bay & sizeable ship
dock or pier. Had our forces been able to hold out or could we have avolded
General Wainrightle surrender order later, we would have constructed trails
passable with pack amimals over the Sierra kadre Mountains end conmeoting with
Casiguran Bay;

That further, Lieut-Colonel Warner plarned to erect at suitable points
Sranamitting and recelving radio sets and to establish through them dirsct
contact with Hawaii and the United States; that addi g
Tendered, ve planned to bresk up the larger m&pinmig’:}?élétgffﬁff il
groups and seatter them so that they could be fed because We reslized that
Bateants surrender would bring the ememy in large numbers after us and into
OuF subsistende routes; that, in addition, we plenned to Cover outlying tere
ritory and orgsnize new harassing groups, wherever this seemed advisable; we
Planned further to ewganize effective operating bases at certain points in
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the so-cslled “Unexplored Territory";

2t sctivities of our patrole and military information was reported
by our Headquarters to our High Command as it cam e in and evaluated;

The t Ljeut-Colon: rner had some differences with Major Manuel P,
Enriquez who up until March lst, 1942, had been Golonel Werrerts Executive
Officer, these differences coming &bout because Euriquez had on several
occasions sent his personal messages on the radio against Lieut-Colonel
arner's orders; that Liecut-Colonel Werner at about this time designated
Major Guillermo Nekar ae his Executive Officer, and placed him in direct
oharge of the radio;

That on the night of April 10th General Jonathan M. Waimwright, commen-
ding USAFFE forces in the Philippines, notified Lieut-Colonel Warner that
Genersl King, April 9th, had surrendered our Forces in Btaan to enemy divi-
sions and werned Lieut-Colonel Wermer to be on the lookout for them (enemy
divisions now;

Twat about March 25th Licut-Colonel Warrzer had received from General
Waimwright permiesion to be away from the Regiment from fifteen to thirty
days effective April 15th for the purpose of inspecting installations on the
east coast (the dock in Casiguran Eay exd air field nearby) end of making
a reconnaissance in the unexplored territory; that permiesionhad been asked
and grented in this instance to place Major Nokar in command of the Regiment
during Lieut-Colonel Warrer's trip; that Lieut-Colonel Warmer had three times
Tequested Kajor Naker's promotion to Ljeut-Colonel up to this time;

Tast despite Lieut-Golomel Warmer's strict orders that official radio
news be not made known outside the radio station it is believed that Major
Neker saw to it that certain civilian officials appesred at our Regimental
Hesdquarters on the morning of April 11th, 1942, in connection with the radio-
gram from General Waimwright concerning the surrender of Gemeral King in
Batesn; that leading this civilien detail were Governor Visaya and Provincial
Treasurer Jusn Silvestre who was spokesman, elso the Third Member, the major
of Jones and others; that the mission of this delegation proved to be to
request Lieut-Colonel Warmer with other Americans to hide away from the
Regirent; that at first Lieut-Colonel Warner with others.of us respected
the sincerity of such a suggsstion or request and were inclined to homor it
but later we beceme convinced that this was all part of & cheap, put-up poli-
tical scheme of Major Nekar's to make it eppear that Lieut-Colonel Warmer and
I with other Americans had deserted the Regiment while he (Nakar) proved to
be the hero who stuck by, refused to obey the surrender order of both General
Wainwright and Lieut-Golonel Warner end built up a politicsl prestige for
bingelf by foreing the Japanese forces to capbure him; that shortly after Nekar
was captured (he had been promoted to Lieut-Colonel about April 15th) I per=
sonally saw &nd talked with him and he (Lieut-Colonel Naker) proudly said to
me, quote: "this hAd made me famous enough that I will be elected President
of the Philippines," unquote; thet it wes LieutwColonel Warmer who finally
surrendered the regiment;

et returning to what happened within our Regiment after General
Welnwright warned Lieut-Colonel Warner to expect Japanese attention to be now
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turned toward ue, the following is recorded: Firet, that Ljeut-Colonel
Warcer immediately called a mesting of his Staff, his Battalion Commanders
and their staffs, for the purpose of discussing his plane and to order the
execution of them; that this meeting was called for ten ofclock A.M., April
11th, and Major Manuel P. Buriquez, commending the Second Battelion, failed
to appear or to be represented; that information resched Lieut-Colomel
Warner about 15 daye later in the person of Captain George T. Scholey from
Colonel John F. Horen 's Hegiment; the 121st Infantry, thet he (Scholey)
had seen Uajor Enriquez while coming through Bayombong snd that Enriquez
was very excitedly engaged in distending and scattering hisoun troops, Tais
was about April 12th;

Thet at the officers' meeting called for ten o'clock A,li » April
11th, Lieut-Colonel Werner brought to our attention two facts, nsmely:
Firet, that any considersble movement of Japsnese troops from the fouth
toward us would cut off our food supplies. We now had spproximately 1000
troops assigned &nd attached; that secondly, sny effort on our part to
meke 8 stand as & Bogiment would surely bring disastrous defeat because of
our extremely small quantity of ammunition and limited sutomatic wespons,
that we had no heavy weapons;

That almost before the meeting hed closed, our patrole to the couth
informed us that 3000 Japanese troops were headed from the south, were now
in San Jose, Nueva Ecijs, and would proceed morth into Nueva Viscaya and
Isabels the following day;

That Ljeut=Colonel Warner now met with Msjor Neksr and the follaing
was dscided upon =

1, That Ceptein Minton's = the First Battalion - would be moved
east over the Sierra Madre Mountsins and distributed in Casiguren and
thTough the barrios on the Casiguren Pay and those north in the Isabela
Frovince nesr the east coast;

2, That the Hesdquarters troops under Major Nakar would occupy in
small groupe the outlying berrious in the far southern Cagayen Valley and
west throughout the Werner (formerly Kong Kong) Valley of Kueve Viscaya;

3. Thst the second battalion under Yajor Menuel P. Eariquez would
occupy scattered positions in Nueva Viscaya within resch of Bayombong,
Belete Pass and far emough west on treil into Eenguet Province to contact
Baglo;

4, Tat all troops would remsin under the orders of specified
officers and non-commiseioned officers;

Thet in the barrios the eoldiers remaining would keep their arme
hidden and would aseist the farmeTs to grow food;

6. Tet the best-qualified officers and enlisted persomnel for
haraseing contact would be selected from all groups and stationed at
vantage points away from the barrious s much s possible;

. t L
7. Tat Ljeut-Colonel Warser would take 8long the with him all
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uld use such portions of the unexplored territory
considered advantageous;

Americen personnel and w
in Isabela Province ae

8," Tt Major Nekar would mske use of such unexplored territory in
Tayabae Province as be needed, he having claimed experience in this terri-
tory while with the Fhilippine Constabulary;

9. That the Regimentsl Tadio would remain until further arrangements
under Najor Naker's direction while Captain Minton and Lieut-Colonel Warner
mede an effort to aquire and erect a more portable setand, if possible, two
sets. With these we could also establish contact between Battalions and
Lieut-Colonel Warmer wanted to arrange contact diTectly with the United States
Hewaii and Australia; :

That Lieut-Colonel Warmer sent a radiogram on April 1lth to General
Wainwright stating that now our food supply was endangered, that we were
scattering troops to assist farmers, that our assembly point would be Jones,
Ieabela, thet he (Lieut-Colonel Warner) was ordering the Americens in the
Regiment to join with him and that he wes going to make effort to join
United or Allied forces elsewhere; that the wording of the telegram was aimed
to mielead and to cover up from the local news-spreaders and gossipers =
who would be sure to spread the contents of Lisut-Colonel Warner's message;
that Lieut-Colonel Warner believed that General Wainwright would issue orders
covering any change in the situation that he wished Lieut=Colonel Warner to
make and that the understanding between Lieut-Colonel Warnmer and Major Nakar
whom ke left in charge of the radio was that Major Nakar would forward to
him sny instructions from General Wainwright. Lieut-Colonel Warmer told
18 jor Nekar that he would notify him (Nakar) of his movemente;

That on the morning of April 12 we began moving my Battelion to Pinap-
pagan, all but two Americane with the Regiment sccompanying Lieut-Colonel
Werner and me there;

That on the morning of April 14th we etarted eastward over the Sierra
Madre Mountains toward Casiguren; that already I had & detail of about 70
men there working on the ship dock and the air field, end that I reached
there (Casiguren) on April 19th; that Lieut-Golonel Warner reached Calabe-
gan on the lover Casiguran BAy the same date and established temporary
headquarters in barrio Dipeadu, then at the school house at Dinslanan;

Thet on or about April 21st Captain George T. Scholey, lst Lieut=Dean
Nicholson (mining engineers commiseioned), Sergeant Harkaway and two Chinese
sergeants - all from Colonel John F. Hoven's Regiment, the 121st Infantry -
joined me in Casiguran; that these officers and men cams of their own accord
and not on the invitation of any of us;

Tust in Casiguran Captain Scholey's group helped us condition for

travel a small launch formerly belonging to & nearby Japanese lumber come
cession;

Thet on April 23rd Scholey's group joined me with Corporsl quinley,
Private John Rusch and Corporal Tireo Umpshsn of my Regiment on the leunch
end we went down the Casiguran Bay where on April 24th we picked up Lieut=
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Colomel Werner, Sergesnt Coyle snd Corporal Altamero at Dinalsnan and set
out for Falapan Bay arriving there at Sibang Island on the morning of April
26th; that Lieut-Colonel Warmer instructed certsin detschmente of our troops
to hike up the cosst and join us in Palensn, which they did, totalling about
35, Some others were sent back to Pinappegan with messages from Lieut-Colo-
nel Nekar (promoted about April 15th) giving him informstion to radio Gemeral
Waimight stout our activities; that after this time we did not get any
direct informetion from Lisut-Colonel Nokar though Lieut-Colonel Warner sent
him & number of coded messagee;

That around the Balanan area Lieut-Colcnel Warner worked on ways and
menas of establching power to operate one of the two redios we had svailable
but were uneble to get into operstion due to lack of & generator sufficiently
strong;

Thet we had a small radio receiving set (commereisl) over which we
heard some news though our batteries were wesk and we had no way of recharg-
ing them;

Tont Lieut-Golonel Warrer now deteiled me in charge of a small group
of Filipinos end Americens to cross over the Sierra kindre again to contact
Lieut-Colomel Naksr with messages to Genersl Waimwright and after they were
sent to get the generator from our Regimentsl radio in Lieut-Colonel Naksr's
care, then to bring same bsck to uee &t a place in the Sierra Madre where
we'd hove water power available = aleo to bring back theubroken:Falamanipost
radio generstor mow reported to be in Ilagan on ite way to Mapils for repair;

That I left Lieut-Colonel Warner on my mission on May 5th and upon
the surrender of Gorregidor he got the information over the small commercial
receiving set and sent it after me; that in the announcement of Gemeral
Waimmight calling organizetions outeide of Gorregidor he (Gemersl Waimright)
called for tne currender of Lieut-Colonel Naker with our forces rather than
for Lieut-Colonel Werner. Tais we learned later from Lieut-Colonel Kalakuka,
General Walmrignt's representative, was because Lieut-Colonel Nekar had
previously informed General Waimwrignt thet he (Nakar) did not know Lisut-
Oolonel Warner's whereabouts - which wes entirely untrue because Lieut=-Colo=
nel Nakar kunew st all times what Lieut-Colonel wae doing and his location;
that at Pinappagen where Ljeut-Colonel Kalakuka wse later hunting Lieut-
Golonel Nekar, Naker was hidden out in the town while his friends seemed only
too anxious to etart Lieut-Colonel Kalakuka after Iieut-Colonel Warmer,
telling him his location; that this is the beginning of where we discovered
that instead of Lieut-Colonel Nakar cooperating with Lieut-GColonel Warmer
in cerrying out & workable plan which would be to the best udvantage of all
concerned, Liecut-Colonel Nekar instead tried to make himeelf quite 8 hero
in the eyes of the Filipinos and tried to appear that the Americans had
deserted the Filipinos and thet he (Nekar) had courageously remaimed by; that
later on 8lsc Naker tried to encourage certain Americans who contacted him f
%o ‘remain with him, then lster became frightened and tried to get the Ameri- ‘
cens to leave him = the very plan and advice that Lieut-Golonel Warmer
nad given in April; that Lieut-Col Warner's only re@son for himself and Ameri-
cans lesving
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That on my trip to contact Lieut-Colonel Na whom we st111 believed
o be south of Jones I planned to detour the Jepanese forces in Jones; that
not far north of Jones however I come upon two small groups of troops of
our Regim who had ned behind with Lieut-Colonel Kaker; that each
of these groups gave me information to the effect that Lisut-Colonel Naker
had diebanded his troops and hed gone to lountain Province; that other
Filipinos whom I inquired of, likewise verified this information as correct;

That near San Marisno I succeeded in getting only s small automobile
generator sufficient to recharge dry cells but mot to operate the radio
transmitter;

That on my return I picked up the copy of Genersl Waimwright's sur-

Tender order to Lieut-Colonel Naker and Lieut-Colonel Kalakuks's personal
letters to him from Filipinos entrusted by Colonel Kelakuks to deliver
these to Lieut-Colomel Naksr; thet these I brought back to Lieut-Colonel
farner returning to his hesdquarters at nesr -barrio Dimaticen on May 25th;

Thet by now Captain George Scholey and party in Falaen had purchased
for P65.,00 and were putting into condition for sailing a.35-foot boat with
outrigger and Scholsy plamned to try to get sway from L thereby and
if possible reach the Chinese coast, hiking inland in an"@fFort to contsct
friendly forces; that Licut-Colonel Warner and I were invited to go along
and concerning this we had o conference togetisr with the following deci-
eion: Lieut-Colonel Warner decided thut he would remain in Luzon to do
what he could in keeping radio contact with higher headquartere and in
organizing effective harassing groups insofer as ammunition could be pro-
cured, that since I was anxious to try to resch the Ghina cosst he would
entrust to me certain records that we wished to get to our lines snd & full
Teport of his plans which he also hoped I could get to where it could reach
our Headquarters in the Far East, that 8lso was prepared for me to toke
along a request to our High Gommand from Lieut-Colonel Warner to remain
out in an effort to carry out his plans;

© st the boat was in readiness to leave Palanan on the morning of
June bth, stocked with provisions for seven men for about seventy days,
when on the aight of June 5th & messenger (one of oup soldiers) arrived
from Lieut~Colonel Theodore Kalakuka, QC, (Genersl Weinwrightts repre-
sentative sent out on Japanese order) in San Mariamo, whion messenger brought
to me for Lieut-Colonel Warmer and the rest of us General Wainwrightte
order to surrender; that along with this came an explanatory letter from
Lisut-Golonel Kalakuka stating by refusing to surrenmder we would be subject
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surrendered troops; that Lieut-Colonel e
waimirignt's surrender was sutho:

That Lieut-Colonel
our other plane snd to obey the su
prisonere already surrendered; that up to this time we had all decided not
to er at any cost; W

That because Lieut-Colonel Kalakuka stated tha nal illness
would detain him a few n Sen Mariamo (sbout 5-days hike from us) be
requested us to contact him thers and I left in Jure 6th for San Mariano
o inform Lieut-Colonel uke that Lieut-Colomel Werner, Captain Scholey
end the soldiers with tiem would be in S8n ariano by June 14th; thet on
this date Lieut-Colonel Warner arrived with some troope, others having
deserted after being ordered by Lieut-Colonel iiarner to accompsny him to
Sen Keriano where he would discuss surrender terms;

Tm t in Sen Merisno Lieut-Colonel Kalskuka informed him that General
Weinwright held him (Licut-Colonel Warner) etill in command of the lath
Infantry and responsible for the eurrender of the unit; further, thet
Gereral Weinwright meent 1t that he wanted Licut-Colonel Warner to surren-
der; that Lieut-Golonel Warmer befors contscting Lieut-Colonel Kulakuka
but hearing sppesle over the radio for the surrender of Lieut-Colonel Nakar,
had prepared and sent in code to Lieut-Golonel Nakar by a Filipino civilian -
one Trinitario Pintang - & written message instructing Naker mot to surren-
der; that Pintang on hie way to Lieut-Colonel Nakar in Pinappagsn told
Lieut-Colonel Kalakuka when they met in San Mariano that he had this message
for Naksr and that Kelakuke seid he vould deliver it whereupon the Filipino
turned 1t over; that Kalakuka then decoded the messege and thereafter misw
trusted Lieut-Colonel Warner's intention to surrender;

That the surremier wae to take place in Hchsgue - Japanese designated
capital of Isabels - and on the way there we were joined in San Antonio by
Major Eugene C. Jscobs, Medical Corps, who had previously joimed our Regiment
and was on his vay to join Lieut-Colonel Werner in Palaman;

That we surrendered in Echague to Japanese Colonel Yoshizawa on
June 19th aml were questioned, then detained with & Japanese horse-drawn
Field Artillery unit at the former Second Isabela Cadre barracks in Echague
until July 20th. Meantime the number of our Filipino officers and men sure
rendered was small and the Japsnese commander desired to have more turn in;
that Lieut-Colonsl Warner offered to meke an effort to get Lieut-Colonel
Nakar and Major Enriquez with more men if permitted to try without Japanese
soldiers to contact them; that at first the Japanese authorities scemed to
favor this but later declined; that meantime Lieut-Colonel Kalakuke wee
sent out again after time officers whom Lieut-Colonsl Warner was Tequired
to send surrender orders in writing; that a note from Lieut-Colonel Warner
by way of Ljeut-Colonel Kalakuka to lst Lieut. Leandro Rosarie of Lieut-
Colonel Warner's staff brought in Lieut. Rosario with about 200 officers
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and men, and Rosario on Ljeut-Colonel yarrer fs advice surrendered;

That after this surrender Jepsnese Staff Lieutenant Sasaki told
Lieut-Colonel Warner that he need not be longer concerned with Lieut-
Colonel Nakar and Msjor Enriquez and their men surrendering - that
Japanese troops would sirely be successful in capturing them; that here
Lieut-Colonel Werner asked that if possible they be given a chance to
surrender if contacted, and that their lives be spared, which was pro=
mised;

That on July 19th we were put in trucks with Japanese troops and
brougat to Cabanatuan Frison Camp where we Americans were left and the
Filipino soldiers with us were taken presumably to Camp C'Donnelj

That late in August Lyeut-Colonel Warmer and I vwe called to
Japenese Hesdquarters at Pricon Gamp and thoroughly questioned ss to all
of our movements since the outbreak of the war; that at the terminstion
of the questioning Lieut-Colonel Warner was told that our radioiwas
operating and in communication with Australia; and thet he and T would
be taken out with Japansse forces to assiet in capturing Lieut-Golonel
Neker and the radio;

Tmt twice more Lieut-Colonel flarmer and I were Questioned and on
September 12th, 1942, ve were taken out of camp and taken again to
Eehague, Isabela; and that here Lieut-Colonel Warmr vwas held until
October 9th as a hostage with the Japenese troops at the Cadre barracks
while I was taken by the Japanese Army military police into some of the
barrios south of Jones, Isabela;

That sometime near the middle of September, I learned later, the
Japanese located and captured the radio which at the time was buried in
Pineppagan; thst on or about September 28th or 29th on the information
of & Filipino policeman of Jomes, believed to be antagonistic to Lieut=
Colonel Nekar, the Jepanese forces captured Naker in a cave in the
sierra Madre foothills mear barrio Ninuri Isabela;

Thet T learned later Lieut-Colomel FWerner was not ever permitted
to see Lieut-Colonel Nekar but was sent south in the Cagayan Valley with
Lieut-golonel Kalakuks and Lieut-Albert Ziegler who had been sssisting
him to bring back about 500 officers and men of the 14th Infantry who,
learning that Lieut-Golonel warner end I wre being held ss hostages,
voluntarily eurrendered; that now Mejor Enriquez and his troope still
remained out and Lieut-Colonels Warner and Kalskuke were taken to Beyom-
bong it is believed to try to get them in; that both these officers
however ®s well 8s Lieut-Ziegler sparated from them at Jones and sent
o Echague, were taken i1l with cerebrsl malaria, Lieut-Colonel Kalakuks
dying on October 31, 1942 in Payombong and Lieut-Ziegler died November
8, 1942, Lieut-Colonel Werner got better and wes returned to Cabanetuan
Prison Cemp December 6§ 1942, after I had been returned about November
24th;

Thet after Lieut-Colonel Naker was captured and brought to Jones,
Isabela, on or about September 29th and later on in Bagulo I sew him and
once had a slight opportunity to tabk with him. It was at this time that
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what he said to me had in it a ring of ineincerity and condemmation of
Lieut-Colonel Warmer, of me and the other Americans when as a matter

of fact all of his actions bore out what we had done what we hed agrsed
to do for the best intereste of the service and of the Filipino people,
whom we could do 1no better for under existing circumstances; that Lieut-
Colonel Neker tried his best later to rid himself of Americans who tried
to remein with him after Lieut-Colonel Warner, the other Americans and

I took up headquarters in the Falanan district;

That in prison camp during Lieut-Colonel Warner's absence, Colonel
John P. Horan spent considerable time and conversation trying to btelittle
and under-rate Lieut-Colenel Warner's efforte;

That Lieut-Colonel Warner held command of the 14th Infantry of
which I commsnded the lst Battalion, until the Japanese sccepted surrender
officially;"

(Signed) WARREN ARTHUR MINTON,
(Tyoed) WARREN ARTHUR 1' ) m'\'

"nnmin, cay:
Commanding lst Ba, lAth Inf

Sworn to &nd subscribed before me this 13th day of September, 1942, at
Militery Prison Camp No» 1 of the Fhilippine Islands, Cabanatuen, Frovince
of Nueve Ecijs, Fo I.

(Signed) PETER KO
(Typed) EETER

STER,

jor, JAGD,
Judge Advoeates

CERTIFIED THUL COFY:
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ORIGIN AID BRIEF HISTORY OF THE ENRIQUEZ GUE!

n 23 Docember, 1941 the forces in Paguio were ordered to teke the
P e through Nueva Vizcaya in order to avoid the
eneay blocking the Kenon erd Neguilian Roads, The US forces were under
the comand of Colonel John P, Horen, USh, then the GO of Gemp John Hay.

A majority of the troops passed through Bukod, Mt. Province while the rect
pessed through Kiangan to Nueve Vizeaya, Somevhere in Aritao, Nueva Vize
) caye, the Awerican Officers (There were two other Cols.) decided o dis-

3 band their forges as they were informed that the Japs had elready Tesched

Tugucgareo and San Jose, FueYa Ecija am vere on their vy to Nueva Vizcaya,

Lt Col Menuel P Enriquez, GSC, then G-2 of the llth Div who was one
of those cub off in Baguio decided to go against the orders to those
American officers and instead collected all the men and ams he could
gather, The men were mostly from the remnante of the 1lth and 12th Inf
Regiments, persomnels of the District Headquarters, lst MD and some men

W\ frou the Comand end Staff Schoolin Baguios

%

4 Battalion wes orgenized by the taen Capt, kiamel P Exriques together
with Ospt. Bdmundo everro, then Znd Lisut, The let Bn Staff vas organized
as follows:

COtasans + oCapt. Kanuel P Enriquez
EX-0 s 4 v o u s . 2nd Lieut Ednundo G Naverro
S-1 &AGJ. o o o o o o+ o20d Lieut Melito P Bulan
s-2 A . .3ra Lieut Honorio Quines
S aenen . .3rd Lieut Manuel T Nery
1 these officers were regular officers and under their guidsnce

and supervision, the Battalion took shape again &s a reguler fighting
outfit, This organization took place about the early days of Jamvary,
1942, Wbile in the process of training, bajor Bverett I. Warner, 86th Fa
(8S) who was Provost Marshall of Camp John Hay arvived at the CP with

ne (1) Ell. Captein lisnuel P Euriquez called his staff officers tcgether
sud they decided to invite Maj Warmer fo comand the Battalion. At fir
Maj Varner refused stating that he did not kuow much about the it
of a Eu CO. Upon being assured that he will be assisted by all the Fil-
ipino Officers he accepted the postion offered to him es In. C0. In the
ueantiue Captain Guillermo Nekar with the B arrived at Ariteo and joined
farces with Captain Namuel P Erriguez. There vas a drestic changsd of or-
ganization with the addition of this Fu 8o that the following setup wes
mades

Hosimental 00 « o o oo+« obaj Everett I, liarnex

v e s s+ e e s eiCapt Nanuel P Enriqu
hswl iaj and 81 o lap Gl Bt © Nerare
+ + +2nd Lieut Mélito P Bulan

3rd Lieut Manvel T. Nery
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€0y 186 B0 o0 o o . o o .. Jlst Licut Verren i
€0, 2nd o + o s s+ . . . JCapt Guillermo Nakar

COyHQ BB o o oo o v s s+ .2nd Licut Edmundo G liavarro
nton

hen Lieut Edmundo G Navarro left Baguio City, he brovght with him
the District Radio Transmitter, having been the District adjutent of
the lst Nilitery District, With this radio, our unit was able o get
in contact with Generel lacArthur in Corrigidor. e we were using the
“First Guerilla Regiment! &s our unite neme, Gen MacArthur authorized
our unit to be called the "l4th Inf’ and promoted several officers in
rank,

The saga of the "l4th Inf" is recorded with GHQ, It is a re-
cord of brillant leadership end commendsble fighting, After the surren-
der of Gen. Wainwright, the "Lith Inf' continued fighting as a unit and
did not surrender inspite of GH{'s order to surrender to the ememy. At
the time of surrencer, the Regimental Staff reed as follows:

Lt Col Guillermo Nakar

Ex=0 s o o v 4 s e s o« o & anuel P Enriguez

A3j & 5=l + 4w o v o .o elst Lieut Artwo Dincong
S-h o 4w ... ... .let Lieut Juanario 4 Longno
CO, HQ Bl . & o oo o oo oOapt Ry He Arnold

C0y 18t Bn v o 4 o o o 4 o o185t Lieut Fermin Obiha

€Oy 2nd Bu s o o . o o+ . Jbaj lanuel P Enriquez

Upon the fall of Petaan, the American Officers left the regiment
with Licut Col Werner with the pretext of going to Casiguren, Tayabas
to contact an Americen sutmarine. Maj Nakar who replaced Maj Enriguez
@s Ex-0, was promoted by Wainwright am made the CO. Maj Enriquez then
vas uade the Ex-O. No orders were made regarding the appointment of the
othier officers due to persistent raids by the Jepe who were swarming
them all over Cagayen Valley.

On the last week of Jume 1942 the l4th Inf was able to contact
SWPA and wes followed by redio message from Gen MacATthur Teceived on
29th June 1942 which partly read as follows:

Lt Col Naker

Toe end splendid by you ard
your command fills me with pride and satisfaction stop it will
be my privilege to see thet you end your Officers and men are
properly rewarded at the appropriate time stop

MacArthur

On 14th July 1942 the messegs of Gen MacArthur wes received direct-
ing Gol Nekar that he may induct the Philippine Army Troops under his
comnand into the Aruy of the United States (AUS) effective lyth July 1942.
Thus Col Nakar, Mej Bxriquez end their men stop to exist as PA Officers
and men and became integrel pert of the Army of the United States,




ol Naker ves ceptured in a csve mear Minury in Jones, Isabels on the
29th Septenber 1942, Najor Manvel P Ebriquez took over the command of the
lith Ini AUS vice Lt Col Naker and was prouoted to the temporery rank of
Lt Gol effective 29 September 1942 by lartin Moses, Lte Col USA

Lt Col Nanuel P Enriquez continued defying theJaps in Kueva Vizceya
and Pangasinen until 13th April 1943 when he and soe men were forced bo
surrender to the enemy after being surrounded by a-Bn of Japanese at Tuba,
Benguet, lit. Province.

Lt Col Manuel P Enriquesz was released by the Japanese Military Police
in Baguio efter his surrender to attract his men but with e condition that
if they find him sgain doing things agsinst the Jepenese Forces, they will
executehin without any trial. However Lt Col Manusl P Enriquez wee nob un-
Gaunted by this threat as he called a mesting of all officers in faguio ab-
out June 1943 am instructed them that the resistance wes to continue but
in & more paseive menner, It was understood by all his officers that they
will cerry instructions just as if he hed mot surrenders

To enalle the men in the mounteins %o carry on the resistance, it was
decided thet a store be established in Beguio %o facilitate
d to collect money, food, clothing end medecine without th
ing the real purpoee of the orgamization. Lt ColMamel P
of Capt Jose lia hverez, an influential Business man from Manila end
member of Nacoco, got the permiseion of the Japanese MP to put up the store
which was to be a subsidiary of the Nacoco and nemed it the Nacoco Store.
Tae WP's believing that this was to help those "misguided elements’ authe
orized its formation. The store flourisned inspibe of the Testrictions
placed upon it by the MP's as a majority of the population of Baguio knew
souehow or the other that these was for the benefit of those in the field,
s0 that they bought goods laviehly from that store. ALL members were fora
merly Bx-USAFFE and Guerrilles and with Col Enriquez as mengger bthe store
becae one of the most successful in the City. This store aleo became the

nessage center for all instructions emenating from and going to Gol
Enriquez.

The following formed the personnel of that store;

Col Manuel P EATAGWZ « o + + = o + - JMaDager
1t Col Nestor P Reinoso . . + « + + - +ASSt Neneger
Capt Santiago 7 Fesurreceiom. . . . . JTreasurer
1st Lieut Antonio Estepa « » + o » » eBookeeper
Capt Eailieno Ramirez . « - + « - » - Selesuan
Capt Antonio Gareis o o s » + 4+ o« -0

Capt Felizardo Tamabe s o » o o o + + + =do-

Capt Enilio BOITGEO » » + + o o o » o ~do-

1st Lieut Melanio Lara. o » o o o o o . ~do-

1st Licut Franciseo de Leoh o o o + o o =dom

2nd Lieut Andrew DOUglas o » o » + & o =do-

2nd Lieut liguel G Velescouee o o o o o =dom
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« +Selesman

L/g‘c?rcceuobnnnz.......

Fonaua Duty de Gallardo, .

5.
Col Mamiel P Fenriquez and some of
e oheutiebioh thup) inBcsEatrne, WeeviEo! Jadn hugizclloloy S

in
were paroled on October 17, 153.

officers and men we

T Col Enriquez’ pardle from the ccucentration camp on Oct
17 xsh: he reorgenized his staff ss follow:

ol hﬂnuel P EGriquez o o o s s a0 s
G-1 & 4é, ...-........hu;&dmuﬂduGﬂaVarro
3085 Gk s o a e s e e e e e e e's | Capt Petro D Duley Ir
Ast 4G Gel o o o o o o s oo o o o Oapt Felizardo Tanabe
G-2 4 0 ssoosoonsossaesslLicut Col Nestor P Reinoso
4386102204 o s ot e e v wieie s ACaRE Joss Mg Alvares
G310 aesaososesassssoltColManuel T Flores
B8t G=3 o s o s s o s o a0 e s oCaptVicente Gepte
b-................Ltcu]s&meen‘«'alwez
£ Geh oo e
His field Crficers as far as'can be Temembered were as follom
e e e e e s
ca. Kiangan SeCtOT o « o o o « o o oo Lt Col Gregorio Manalo
CO, Cagayan Valley Rogt o« o o o o +u Col lieTcelo Adduro
0 Eoakoomsste o ooV MY L L
€0, Ilocos Sector o
€0, 14th Inf Fest « e e LtCol ole Manriquez
GOy N, Vizcaya Sebotags Bn o « o o ev liej Fauon Alcaraz
DL G L pa L i hie em i
in the Field the Enriquez 111
organized unit in the Pnillpyines. Nonthiy resters of Officers
tore, 4 radio transuitter wes

Manila o Baguio by Maj AL

Panay bt
their destination for ressons relsted in the following paregraphs

& men by the neme of Franco Vera Feyes who turned out to be
Japanese Spy succeeded in enlisting his services with the orgenization
by having himeelf introduced by en Auerican Officer by the neme of Capt
Bill Arthur, Vith a Var Department Idemtificetion Card, several copies of
1942 and 1943 magezines on Australian Hend Gremsde seversl 1942 am-
mundtion and letters of Commander Chick Parsons, he was atle to convince
Col Enriquez that he just errived from Australia and wes brought by @ sub=

rrillas,
He apparently had plenty of caeh with him end his first gesture wa
%6 1o siiatmiton $15,000,00, e wes Tersroes sble ¥ sof She espats

&
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of the unit, In justice to Gol Mamuel P Enriquez decision to accept
FReyes as a genuine represertatives from Australia. be it known that
the identity of Franco Vera Reyes was firet checked with the mother
in lew of Commander Chic Parscus, as Mirs Jurice who verified the pen
menship of Commender Parsons. Other Americans were also investigated
and among those who testified to the verasity of Franco Vera Feyes
were lirs Fev Stegg, Miss Wilt of Emanuel Hospital and same of the
members of krs Stages' church.

Franco Vera Reyes was a talkative mn and whem he started tell-
ing stories every one of them was checked, Cept Jose Ma Alvarez was
able to verify his stories about Messers Zobel and Elizalde and both
@isclaiped any knovledge of Franco Vera Reyes. Maj Ecmundo G Navarro
wes able to dig into his former recorde before the war and found out
that he was a former embezaler and a crook who took edvantage of the
mining boom, Capt Vicente Gepte was able to verify from Gen Vicente
Lim the etories told by Vera Reyes and which mever happened. Other or-
nizations who mere introduced to Vera Royes started to investigate
his activities and found that he was playing a double face game.
this time Vera Reyes had given about sixty thousand pesos i receipts
0 organization which were exchanged for Jepanese wer Notes and out of
this be got about Thirty Thousand Pesos.

4 hasty conference was called wherein it was decided that the ime
portant members of the comend be made to take advantege of the Aunesty
Proclamation given by Laurel's Puppet Govermment, This wes arrerged

by Minister Quintin Paredes, Asscublynen Florendo Aquino amd Remon Mitra
with the secretary to the Presiden lir. Pedro Sebido in order to save

the whole organization from being identified by the Japanese Military
Police. This did mot prevent the arrest which transpired a week later.
The first to be arrested ves Capt Alverez followed by Col Enriguez who
had just errived from Tayabss with Capt antonio Garcie, Lt Gol Reinoso
and Caot Gepte and all the members of the Nacoco store in Baguio were
arrested, MNre Enriquez wae included in $his arrest. Those wio were able
%o flee were Lt Col Nenuel T Flores, Capt Bdmundo Navarro, Lt Col Simmon
Valdez, Lt Enrique Tayag, Capt Felizardo Temabe, Capt Emilio Borromeo

&nd Capt Antonio Gercia. This survivors fled to different Provinces and
joined up with differcnt unite but scme were never included in recognized
Tosters. Others went in hiding and were not alle bto contact their former
units. Those Who Were caught and later released after a fow months in
prison were £0 wesk and sick that they became inactive.

Gol Enriques aid soue of his men were reported executed in Fort
lac Kinley by the Japs on or about 30 August 19ik.
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! 4 BRISF HISTORY, L4TH INF AUS

“ he 14th Inf is & group of scattered troops of the USAFFE consolidited
in Nueva Viscaya province on or about the first week of January 1942,

Gathering what was left of the lst Bn, 7lst Inf, 71st Div, Capt.
Guillerno Nakar, Commanding Officer of the gallant ‘battalion, withdraw toward
Baguio pursued by an overwh superior enemy force. Baguio
elvoady captured and occupied by the enemy, this intrepid warrior procesded
acrose the Cordillers mountains overcoming a1l odds and difficulties that are
inevitebly sttendent on jungle trails, and arrived at A.iteo, Nueva Viscaya,
about Jenuery 8, 1942, Ceptain Naker found that Capt, Everret L, Werner and
Capt Manuel P. Enriques were already trying to organize stragglers from the
11th Divisdon , 26th Cav (PS), the Headquarters of the lst Military District
who were unable to proceed to Batean in view of the capture and occupation by
the eneny of San Jose, Nueva Beija, end with a few civilian volunteers who were
al80 mustered or inducted into the service of Major Everret Warner. These
three gallant leaders undaunted by their being cut off from the USAFFE TROOPS
at Batasn, pooled their men together mumbering about 800 end formed themselves
into a Unit which was temporarily | 1st Guerrilla
by USAFFE HQ, Contact with USAFFE HQ was established by radio which was brought
down from HQ, 1st Military District, Camp Henru T, Allen, Baguio City by Sgt
Jose Cabanero with the help of native cargadores.

This regiment as it will be seen later, was redesignated 14th Infey
USAFFE, The original set up was as followss

Regimental Commander = - = Major Bverret L, Waner
Ex 0 and 00, Hq Bn = - ~ = Capt Manuel P, Enriques
Rgt'l Adj & CO, 1st Bn - - 1st Lt Warren A Minton
©0, Bam === ===~ Capt Guillermo Naker

The lecation of the different Command Posts were as follows:

Rgt'l OP & Rdio Station = = Sto. Doningo, Bambang, Nueva Viscaya
lgt Bn = = = = = = = = = = Dupax, Hueva Viscaya
2nd Bn = = = = = = = = = = Comon, Aritao, Nueva Viscaya

Rediogrephie contect was made with the General Headquarters of Gen
MecArthur, Gen 15 Headquarters congnizance of the existence of the
1st Guerrilla Regiment and the courageous and unique motives which gave the
birth, resulted in the promotion of Capts l.nn-l Naker and Bnriquez to Major
and the 4 sbout the third

of 8gt Jose to

mission was to harrass the enemy and gathor enemy information but that it was
to preserve its organisation by disereetly aveiding direct contact with the
enemy, In other words, its mission wes combat intelligence, For this purpose
‘the n:unh’.ulm of soctors were madek Major Neker and his battalion
fron Balete Pass to Bato Ferrys Headquarters end 1st Battalion = from Bato
Fory inclusive to Aparrei. Itehing for action, the 1st Bn on or about 13 Jan
1942, raided "-“';'M Cagayan, This raid was undertaken in conjunetion
with Capt Prasger's Cav (P8), contingents of the 71st Inf, and few
eivilian eors amfng them was Franeis A, Camp, later on commissioned. T
splendid results of this sotdon were the killing of not less than 100 Japs,

“le
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2nd the destruction on the ground of 3 Jap planes, Genoral Hoadquarters,
USAFFE, was so pleased with the results that it commended and decorated all
‘the Officerts end BM that participated in the raid, There were minor subse=
quent engagements of the troops and casualties inflicted on the enemy could
not be determined in view of the lack of means of verification attendant an
hiteand-run tactics. Enraged by these intermittent engagements and fervently
desirous to exploit the rich sources of food supplies in the Cagayan Valley,
‘the Japenese Imperial Forces made a dotermined sffort to push thru and destroy
the USAFFE gorces thereat, This was ebout the 3rd week of Jenuary, 1942, and
the @nd Bn then under Major Nakar was occupying defensive positions from
Bambang to Balete Pass. Then there were reports from Regimentsl Headquarters
to the effect that the Japanese were eoming to the Cagayan Valley in two
columns, - one thru Highway No. 5 and the other tirm the Baguio-Kiangan rooad.
In the last week of January, minor contacts with the fedlers of the advancing
Japanese Columns up the San Jose<-Balete Pass road were made by the outposts of
the 2nd Bettelion, At this time, there was en increase of serial reconnaissance
by the enemy, On or about the 25th of January, 1942, e message from Major
Warner wasreceived by Major Nekar, to procced to Bayombong with all his

to assume command of the regimont in view of the illness of both Major Werner
and Mgor ¥nriques, Major Nakar, seeing the great nossilllity of hitting the
enemy hard from his vantage of the out
of the order, The order being repeated the next day was ignored by Major Naker,
A third order was received on or dout the 27th in compliance of which Major
Nakar pulled out his healquarters and men from Sen Fernando and all the posi-
tion they occupied and proceeded te Bayombong, leaving only sbout a plateon
under Lt, Januario Longno to cover the withdrawal,

The 2nd Battalion troops arrived at Bayombong in the morning of the 28th
end Major Guillermo Nalr inmediately od command, A brief conference of
the Rogimentsl Staff developed to the issuance of an order to move the ‘troops
to Isabela, In view of the meagerness of the means of transportation, the
availeble trucks and other vehicles shuttled the troops to Isabela. On the
29th of January, the advence party of the Jap colusn was engeged by Lt Longno
and his men at Bambang, destroying one truek and ene command cer and killing
49 troops (Nips), While this engagemant was taking plece, the movement towards
Jones continued. On the same dey, N o redonnaissance planes flew over
Bagabag where Nakar!s troops were still in bivouss, The follewing day 7 planes
‘bombed Bagabag ond Bayombong, hitting the Home Beonomics Building and the
merket, Fortunately the troops were already far on their way toward Isabela
having moved at night on 28th Jenuery 1942,

Upon errival at Jones, Isabela, on or about 2 Fob 42, the regimental
headquarters was established at NMesaya where Lt Col Warner assumed command
putting back into operation the Redio Transmitter thereat. The lst Battalion
under Capt Minton in the 2nd under Major Nakar

at Daligan, Radio conbtact with the USAFX Headquarters was resumed upon which

a iossage was rocoived directing Lt Col Werner to cease the use of 1st Guerrilla
Rogiments and designated the unit as the 14th Inf, USAFFE,

Shortage of arms, y and other
to effect thooperations as well as the heslth of the regiment. In response
radiographic appeal for supplies, two planes dropped on 16 Felwruary 1942, a
box of medicine, 2 boxes of ammmtion Cal 50, mp.m.umm:;vm
and .

Cept Minten and an envelope nmnﬁ.uw m :ﬁ‘.&m

Telephone communication for intedligence
s
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province of Isabela, Nueva Viscaya and p-rt of Cagayen under Lt Ambrocio
operated and maintained with members of the nuinnt ‘and in some plsce
by volunteer guards.

The 1st Bn under Capt Minton which was mostly composed of civilian
volunteers spent its time in training its men. The HQ BN under Major
Enriques sent out a few combat reconnaissance partrols and guarded the
Regt'l CP. Th- Znﬂ Bn under Major Neker was busy harassing the enemy and

e following importend events happened between February 15, 19‘2 to
the r-n of Bataan, April 9, 19421
A, = HQ BN wnder Major Manuel P, Enriquess

Maintenance of the redio n.ntnt with Hq Gen MacArthur and
later with Gen Wainright and sending in important intelld-

gonce informetion gethered w the intelligence and combat
patrols

2 - louptnu of Bayombong and killing of m;-nto, Japanese
itary Administrator for Nueva Viscaya province on the
-mu- of Mareh, 1942,

3. - Gathering of arms and ammunition from oivilians.
B, = 1st Bn under Capt Minton:
1, - Training of Men:
- Collecting of arms and ammunition
3, = Constructing an airstrip at Palseian, Jones, Isabela
G, = 2§D BN under Major Guillermo Nakars
1, = Sending combat intelligence patrols
2.-0“\!!0!51!’!.‘8“[:‘!‘, Gordon, Isabela by a patrol
od by Lt Permin Obina, Lt, Bueno and Acting Officer Ricarde
.l-hnh, later on commissioneds
3, - Raids by the Men of Lt Jenuaryo Longno, Lt Nabunga end Lt
Roserio betwesn Aritao and Sta Fe on the following datess
1”94;“‘” 1942, 12 Fetruary 1942, 18 March 1942 and 7
he m»d-uurm-ruunr.uobmn 00} R
T T T B e gy Tt o 1
House was burned, killed and nmu on -u'tlrmh-l nunbers
of Japsy
5, Capture of 1 Jap soldier south of A
: Gamp in the last mkofhmlé-"‘w“ ol

6. The killing of the 6 Jap prisoners by Lt Gol ¥, Warner
Gapt Minton for attempting to m-p:' during the 1st v

3.
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7o Collecting of arms end anmunitions from eivilians,

D, = Redesignation of Units, 14th Inf in the Middle of March 19423
1. Regt'l Commander still Lt Col X, L. Warner:
2, The 2nd Bn beceme the HQBN and Major G. Nakar became Regt'l
Ex 0 and €O, HQBN,
3, The HQEN of Major Bnriques became the 2nd Bn under Major
Manuel P Enriquess:
4. The 18t Bn under Cept Minton (no change)s
5. The Regimental CP moved to Usol, Jone, Isabelas
6. The 2nd Bn under Major Enriques moved té recaptureed Bayombeng,
Nueva Viscayas
EB. = Promotions:
As fer as I cen remember, the following officers wre rromoted
by Radiograms
Major Everret L, Warner + Tt Col 3 February 19421 Gen MacArthur
1st Lt Warren Minton 3 Captain: Februery 19423 Gen MacArthur
3rd Lt Tesoro Reyes ¢ 1st Lt 3 10 Feb 1942 s Gen MacArthur
3rd Lt Janueryo Longno ¢ 1st Lt 1 10 Feb 1942 3 Gon MacArthur
3rd Lt A s 18t Lt 3 10 Peb 1942 1 n MacArthur
2nd Lt Fermin L. Obina 8 1ot It 3 25 Mar 1942 3 “Gen Wainright
3rd It Arturo Dingcong 1 2nd 4 25 Mar 1942 s Gen Wainright
3rd It Bulogio Bueno 3 2nd Lt 3 25 Mar 1942 1 Gen Wainwright
3rd Lt Jose Csbanero 3 2nd Lt ¢ 25 Mar 1942 & Gen Wainwright
3rd Lt Antonio Castro 8 2nd Lt 3 25 Mar 1942 1 Gen Weinwright
3rd Lt Enrique t 2nd Lt 3 25 March 42 1 Gen Wainwright
3rd Lt Benjemin Perdide 3 2pd Lt 3 25 Mar 1942 3 Gen Wainwr:
3rd Lt Julian Perdigueros $ 2nd Lt ¢ 25 Mar 1942 : Gen Wainwr:
3rd Lt Alfonso Ana + 2hd Lt 3 25 Mar 1942 3 Gen Wainwright
3rd Lt Pedro Vea t 2nd Lt 3 25 Mar 1942 1 Gen Wainwright
204 It Proilan Nerico s 1st Lt 3 14 Apr 1942 3 Gen Wainwr:
2nd Lt Proilen B, Parado 1 1st Lt 3 14 Apr 1942 @ Gen Wainwright
2md Lt Leandro Rosario s 1t 2 14 Apr 1942 1 Gen Wainwright
2nd Lt Nomeriano Valdepenas 2 1st Lt ¢ 14 Apr 1942 3 Gen Wainwright
3rd Lt Lope C: 3 20d Lt s 14 Apr 1942 ¢ Gon We
3rd Lt Vicente Cerag 1 200 I8 3 24 Apr 2042 4 n:: I:A!::r‘i:::
,uhnm-:u_;f t20d Lt 3 14 Apr 1942 3 Gen Wainwright
3rd It Meriano elsta 12046 1 14 A1l 42 1 Gen Welnwright
3rd Lt Alejandro Futad ¢ 2nd Lt 0 14 Apr 1942 3 Gen Wainwright
e 204 It 8 14 Apr 192 1 Gen Wainwright
3rd Lt Juan Sabalboro + 2nd Lt 3 14 Apr 3
3rd 1t Antondo dels Cueva + 2nd It P 1942 1 Gen Wainwright
t 14 Apr 2942 1 Gen Wainwright
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3rd Lt. Rogerio Diesto 3 2nd Lt 3 14 Apr 1942 : Gen Wainwright
3rd Lt. Roman Licayan 3 2nd Lt 2 14 Apr 1942 : Gen Wainwright
3rd Lt. Juan Coma 3 2nd Lt 3 14 Apr 1 3 Gen Wainwright
3rd Lt. Pedro Mabunga ¢ 2nd Lt s 14 Apr 1942 3 Gen Wainwright
3rd Lt. Vicente Matias 3 2nd Lt s 14 Apr 1942 3 Gen Wainwright
3rd Lt. Gervacio Reyes ¢ 2nd Lt 3 14 Apr 1942 3 Gen Wainwright
3rd Lt, Joel Senot 3 2nd Lt ¢ 14 Apr 1942 s Gen Wainwright
3rd It. Prescillano Veslaseo t 2nd It 3 14 Apr 1942 3 Gen Wainwright

F. = Comnissions:
As far as I cen remember, the following commissions were mede

by radios
Civ Dr. Celso Mesa 3 1st Lt DC s April 1942: CGen Wainwright
Civ Dr. Vicente Flrids 3 1st Lt MC 3 Aprdl 1942: Gen Wainwright
Civ Dr. Miguel Castro ¢ 1st Lt MC 3 Aprdl 1942: Gen Weinwright
Civ Ricapdo B, Ambroeio ¢ 3rd Lt 8 5 Mar 19421 Gen
Civ Leandro Roserio 1 2nd Lt t 5 Mar 1942: Gen MecArthur
Civ Francis A. Cemp 3 2nd Lt 8 March 19423

Capt Robert H Arnold, SC (USA) reported and was assigned with the
14th Inf as S-2 and Signal Officer on 10 April 1942/

As a result of the surrender of Batasn, Lt Col B L Warner, Cept Minton
end some of the lst Bn Officers and Men left on 12 Aprdl 1942 for Casiguran,
Tayabas, after Gol ssent a ing Gen Wainwright to
send a destroyer to pick him up at Casiguran Bay, Gen Weinwright radioed
back directing Col Warner to stay with his command. This message was sent
by rush messengers to Casiguran but Col Warner, Cept Minton and other Ameri-
cans hed already boarded a reconditioned Jap launched with the intention to
ge to China,

Major Guillermo Naker was promoted Lt Col on or about 13 April 1942
and essigned 00 14th Inf ly Gen Wainwright; Capt R. H. Arnold became the
00 HQENy lst Lt Obina, Aetg CO and Ex O, lst Bn and Major Menuel P, “nri-
ques, CO, 2nd Bn, 2nd Lt Arture was Adjutent
and was promoted lst Lt on or about 25 April 1942 together with lst Lt
Edmundo Navarro, Ex 0, 2nd Bn on same date by Gen Wainwright,

On the fall of Corregider, mo radiographie instructions were received
from Gen Wainright, Our signal officer Lt Jose Cabanero reported that the
Redio Station of Corregidor stopped all of & sudden and was no longer on the
air, Radio brosdcests from mlfﬁ Sen Franoisco, commented that the order
of surrender of Gen lu.nr!.s:c ich was boradeasted did not sound 1ike the
naturel veice of Gen Wainwr: and further sied that if it was Gon Wain-
wright, he wes foreed to do it or that he did it under duress, Jap planes

urrender loaflets sddressed to Lt Col Nekar, Lt Gol
Kal: was sent to contact Gol Nakar inorder to make him surrender but
Col Nakar had slready deeided to econtinue the fight and never te GEERATIREas
At this tine Wte HGEN, less one Gowpeny was dn the Regt'l GP ot o

-5
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Jones, Isabela with "A", "O" and 1/2 of "D" Company in around the
surrounding berrios of Jones. One compeny of the HOEN under Cept Alfonso
Beguno was in Cabagan, Isabela, the other half of the "D" Co, under Lt
Francis A, Camp as at tuso, Cegayan and "B" Company under Lt Jenuario
Longno was as Sen Fernando, Bambang, Nueve Visceys. Te whole of the 2nd
Bn under Major Enriques was spreed out from Sentiago, Isabela, to Bambang
Nueva Viseaya with headquarters nesr Bayombong.

In view of thescareity of food, the lack of sufficient arms, ammuni-
tions and medieine, and in order to easily hide the men end st the same
time facilities the gathering and relaying of enemy iInformation for higher
headquarters, Lt Col Nakar ordered that the Officers and Men not actually
needed in the Regt'l CP, the tactically dispersed. ach officer sent out

under him. The man were instructed to report
week or as often as situation
fficers were instructed to submit inforn: n at least
4 series of contact
station was already in operation where they were going to. All a Station
knows is thet it will only relay a message to the rext station and nothing
more.

On 13 May 1942, the Regt'l Staff, Radio Station, and around 70 EM end
10 Off moved upstresm the Cagayan River and esteblished its headquarters in
a small clearing about 5 Kms from Domabate, Pinappagen, Nueva Viscaya on 15
May 1942,

The perded from 15 May 1942 to 15 June 1942 was devoted to the setting
up of the Radio Transmitter and receiver under Lt Jose Cabanero with the
help of Capt Arnold and Sgte Lebrojo and Domingo. Officers were assigned in
the gathering of S-2 information were sent out to perfect the intedligence
sot up as well as the contact and reley station system. In the meantime the
wunits under Lt Camp in the Cagayan and northern Issbela province and those
under Major Bnriques end Lt Longeo in the province of Nueva Viscaya were
destwoying bridges and herassing the enemy who by this time had become too
froe and 1 and in their te meking him en easy prey to our small
mbile patrols.

On 16 June 1942, the Redio tramsuitter set was set into operation and
the deelicate task of contacting a friendly station began. After long and
careful delibdration on the procedurs to be followed and the messages and
4o be sent in order to deny en enemy station from knowing our real identily
and location and at the same time positively determine shat we eare in
contect with a friendly station, the follwoing plan was put inte action: Our
station was given a call name which sounded 1ike a Java word. It was to send
a goneral osll snd upon contact with another station, it will ask for the
time end then give a message ssking the neme of the wife of an officer whose
ASN was so and so (This ASN was tho SN 6f Capt Robert H Arnold, USA) It will
Purther request that the word Nabuhey be troadcasted over station KGRI, Sen
Franeisco, In the last week of June 1942, contact was made by our stabdon
and the above procedure was followed, The time was given by the station was
contasted pointed Derwin, Austrelia es its location, However, we were still
in doubt, But, about two days later, the neme of the wife of Cept Arneld
and the word MABUHAY was broadeasted over KGBI in the evening, This was
followed by a Radio message from Gen MacArthur received on 29 June 1942 whi:
pertly reed as follows:

.
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WLT COL NAKAR:
THE COURAGEOUS AND SPLENDID RESISTANCE MAINTAINED BY YOU
AKD YOUR COMMAND FILLS M WITH PRIDE AND SATISFACTION STOP IT
WILL BE MY PRIVILEGE TO SEE THAT YOU AND YOUR OFFICERS AND
4RE PROPERLY REW/RDED AT TH: APPROPRIATE TIME STOP X X X X MY
AFFECTION AND BEST WISHES
MacARTHUR"

Ina rediogram, Col Nakar reported the strength of the regiment which
was as far as I can remember 62 officers and 960 enlisted men plus 3
officers and 140 enlisted men of the Philippine Constabulary who were
attached.

In one of the first messages from Gen MacArthwr the mission of the
14th Inf was specified and that was to obtain and tramsmit intelligence
information to GHQ, SWPA, In order to acamplish this end, Col Nakar asked
for ¥5,000,00 to bespend solely !‘lr inf.allinnu purposes, This ro oquest
was approved by Gen MacArthur. the strength of this authority, eivilhn
§-2 agents were employed with uduriu ranging from ¥5000 to ¥150,00,
However, this agents were never paid on account of fact that no funds should
be obtain locally. Intelligence moverage was expanded to include as far

south as Manila and as fer north as Aparri, 3-2 reports were sent Q.o Gm
MecArthur eovering all kinds onomy
lations, concentrations as well as the uum treatment the rmpm -nd
Amaican prisoners of Wer was receiving in the concentration camp, The men
and officers sent out for S-2 work also carried with them a one-page mimeo-

aphed newspaper called the "SPIRIT OF BATAAN" and signed MATANGLAWIN
rnh Bye). This paper did not enly serve as the only meams by which the
people were infamed of the true happenings of the war but also warned the
edvil population from aiding the enemy in any form.

On 1 July 1942 a message from Gen
Col Neker that he mey induet the PA troops under hh commend into the Aw
of the United States effective 14 July 1942. This same radiogram contained
the pay end allowances of US Army personnel from Pvt to Golonel, Seme
r-dhp'_ also had the ASN Block for officer and Enlisted Men to be assigned

to the 14th Inf AUS which are as follows: -mom.un-o-mmo

693 for enlisted men = 10626000 to 1 1ately
eircularized to the Officers and men of the rqh-nt (Bn inoldsure) and the
officers and men in the regimental command Post and vieinity were immediately
indueted into the AUS and givén ASN, Capt Fermin Obina and Lt Julisn Perde-
gueros were delegated and sent out for the induction of the men end officers
of the HQBN and lst Bn while Major Manuel P Enriques was delegated to induct
th- 2nd Bn which was at that time spread out in Nueva Viscaya and nntlrn

esinen, In view of the distance and the diffisulties of tr

.nd communication the induetion was slow and delayed speeially in the nih
of the 2nd Bn, Col Nakar however, in order to be fair to all ordered that all
induction be dated 14 July 1942, Bod-u;‘ of this he sent a nessage to SWPA

Lists of all officers and enlisted men inducted into the AUS with their ASN
were kept in the ln.huhl CP together with the oaths of offisce for officers.

The present diserepancies in the assignment of ASN for officers can

be tmeed in this manners In the first pluo \ho ofmm ASN as wes firat
received by us had enly two 8's or only 0-88070 - 0-88169, Take my case
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a8 en example, I was given ASN 0-88079 as a First Lieutenant and was
recommended for promotion with the same ASN, Wehn the correction was
made to 888070, I was slready promoted Captain and another seniority
1ist wes made. I was this time assigned ASN 888075. I was therefore
using ASN 0-888075 until I was given an extract copy of my SO Promoting
me to Captain wherein my ASN was 0-888079. This is true with eluost all
the officers, The only thing to do now is to inform all the officers to
use the first ASN given them adding one more 8 or to reassign serial
numbers to officers whoso serial numbers wers not reperted by radio to
GHQ, SHPA.

In the last wesk of July 1942, a rediogram from GHQ, SWPA was received
inquirdng as to where psrsonnel could be landed to contact the 14th Inf AUS.
This message was answered requesting information as to how the vorsonnel
will be lsnded ~ by perschute from a plane or by subrarine. Heanwhile a
patrol wes immediately sent to Casiguran, Teyabas to establish an outpost
end a reception point to receive the persomnel if they will be ianded by
submarine,

Kadiogrem was received promoting the following officers effective 2nd
August 1942 to ranks as féllows:

10 BE MATOR T0 BE st LT

Capt Robert H. Arnold 2nd Lt Harley P, Hoid
C, 2nd Lt Homorio Quines

1st Lt Fermin Obina 2nd Lt Julisn Perdiguneros
1st It Zrturo Dingeong 2nd Lt Enlogio Bueno
1st Lt Tesoro Reyes 2nd Lt Freneis A, Camp
1st Lt Jenuerio Lorgno 2nd Lt Benjamin Perdido
1st Lt Juan Asuncion 2nd Lt Antenio Castro

7nd Lt Jose Cebanero

The following civilians who were long serving the unit acting as
officers were ag far as I can remember commissioned 2nd Lt in the Army of
the United States on or sbout 9 August 1942,

Hospieio Tabilangan
Mario Gonzeles

One of the last messages received on 12 August 1942 from GHQ, SWPA
before the Radio Station was dismantled dwe to the reports that the enemy
hed located the station and was sending petrols to capture it was one which
asked for the order of battle of the Japanese Army in the Philippines, This
nessage was nover answered, The radio set, after SWPA was duly notiffed thst
eontact will be resumed on the 27th or 28th of August 1942, was dismantled
and together with complete set of rocords wes pleced in a big Galvanized Iren
tank and buried in the ground near the edge of the forest. Two other sets of
reeords wero oiled placed in small cans, and burded about 200 to 500 yeards
inside the forest.

Beginning the first of July of 1942, the Japsnese Imperial after
st fatled to got any rosults in induoing Gol Neker to surrender, o
the most ond systematio mopping up ope against the troops
of Col Nakar in the Gagayan Velley, These operations wire conducted by
Infentry troops, ﬂnu" Japs and Filipino MP's end Ganeps and was marked
with bombing, impri of d persons, torture

-8
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and atroeities of the highest order. However, the Japs did mot gain
much headWay in the gaining of correct information about the whereabouts
of Col Nekar and his troops. In retaliation of the atrocities committed
by the Japs and partly because of the increased obstacles to be overcomed
in the securing of valusble S-2 information, ourpatrols had to fight it
out with tho Japs resulting to more torture and brutelities end later on
during the last week of July some civilians and enlisted men who hed a
1ittle more knowledge than they should have concerning the 14th Inf AUS
were captured, Lt Leandro Rosario one of the fow officers who were able
to visit Col Nekar in our Regt'l CP at Domabato, Pinappegan, Nueva Viscaye
surrendered to the Japs in Bayombong and was reported to have been very
close to the Japs. These events lead to the dismantling of the radio
station and tho burying of the recerds as was previously mentioned. On
or about 25 August 1942 ly two ies of Japs
Pinappagen, Nueva Viseaya, Two deys before the arrivel of the Japs how-
over, Col Naker issued orders thad no fighting should be done in Pinap-
pagen alid that everybody should pretend to be eivilians. Lt Jose Cabanero
wes loft near the place where the redio and records were buried and I with
Major Arnold, Lt Heib, two other American soldiers and around 35 EM about
half of whom were sick of Melaria, encamped about 5 kilometers from our
roginentel CP, A4 day before the Jops arrived at Pinappagan, Col Naker
left for a bartio near Jones, Issbela, His intention was to watch the
Japsnese more closely in order to be able to determine what the Japs kmow
about Pinsppagen and their plams, On 28 August 1942 the Japs left Pinap-
pagan for Jones but returned two days later with a bigger foree and with'
Lt. Antonio Castro and enother soldier by the name Coleol as prisoners,
On'the 13 of September our old regimental CP was raided by the Japs guided
by Coleol. Finding the cemp empty, the Japs burned all the shelters. My
group moved out to another secret knwon only to 2 or 3 civiliens,
But one of ouwr contact men by the neme of Del Rosario, a PC soldier, was
captured without our kmowledge and after he was by lod the
Japs to our bivouse area on 14 Sept 42. Xarly on the morning of 15 Sept
ny cemp was raided end after a short encounter ‘between the Japs and our
men that covered our withdrewal, I and 2 of my soldiers were sick were
surrounded in a thick bush taken prisoners. Sgte Pablo Villsnobles and

& who were too sick to run stayed behind and fired at the Japs until
they were killed, Casualties on tho side of the Japs could not be deter-

mined,

I was taken to the Jap garrison at and was
and tertured as I refused to give any information, Only the people of
Pinappagan, Major Arnold, end Colonels Warner and Kalakuka who later on

visited me in the cell eould tell how I was tortured as a result of
refusal to give out the secrets of the regiment. On 17 September
Leandro Rossrie arrived at Pinappagan with Col Ide and a regiment of Jepa~
nese soldiers. Rosario delivered meaches telling the people that they
should eooperate with the Japs and reveal the seerets of the 14th Inf,

4n important fact here has to be as it was
for the capture of Col Nakar, the radio,the records, and the surrender
of som the officers and men, This fact was that Lt Roserio founded
the town of Pinappagan and his words were very much respected by the
people, However, the people tried hard to keep the secrets of the 14th
Inf untdil Roserio and the Japs gave out an ultimatun that all will. be
killed if no one will tell the truth ebout the radio and Col Nekar, The

™
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people softened and with the squealing of en Aglipeyan priest by tho name
of Castillo the radio was located and dugged out by Rosario and the

on or shout the last week of September 1942. The capture of Col Nakar in
a cave near Minuri, Jones, Isabela on 29 September by the Japs with the
help of Sabaluca, chief of poliece of Jones) and 300 Ganaps followed. Lt
Roserio once boasted to me in my prison cell that he was going to get a
medal from the Emperor for tho cepture of Col Naker and his radio. Lt
Roserio and his co-sples who received medals for the capture of Col Naker
and the radio did weer their models but they all disappeared before the
US irmy returned to the Philippines to give them a chence to mssert that
they were not spies, traitors nor collaborators.

The other two sets of records buried in the forest were according to
reliable information also found by the Japs in one of their excavation
patrols to our GP in which colonels Warner and Kalakuka were pr
Japs in these excavation patrols used from 200 to 300 eivilian
equal number of Japs and with crowbars and sharpened sticks combed the viei~
nity of our old CP for buried reeords, supplies, equipment, and valuables,
They d1d this for almost two weeks and at the end of this period, they got
practically everything except the buriedemn where the radio tubes, crystals,
codes and other important parts of the redio set were placed. This can was
later on accidentally dug out by civilians about 2 years after but the con-
tains were elready decayed.

On 23 October 1942, ell the Japs in Pinappagan moved down to Jones,
Isabela with all their prisoners nemely: Lt-Colonels Warner end Kalaluka,
Lte Zeigler and Antonio Castro, the two soldiers who were captured with

me, Judge Catelino Valbuena of Pinappagan who was our §-2 agent and who
never squesled in spite of the severs torture he received from the Japs,

and myself, Judge Valbuena and the two scldiers were bhyoneted on the way

5 Kns north of Pinappagan and before we reached Jones, Lt Castro and I

were taken each by four Japs their rifles with fixed bayonets to the Cagayan
River. When the Jape were about to bayonet me, I broke down loose and rum,
T heard four shots and then I dove to the river and swam with the current

at Pinappagan, Nueva Viscaya. From 24 tober 1942 to September 1945, Maj
Arnold conmended the remnants of the 14th Inf, AUS who wre hiding and had
never surrendored between Jones, Isabela and Pinappagan, Nueva Viscaya)

This group consisted of 8 officers namely: Major Arnold, Lts Harley F Heib,
Leonardo Gelima, Gervseio Reyes, Enrique Crus, Pedro Vea, Benjemin Aviles,
myself end sbout 60 enlisted men. This group under Najor Arnold wes always
‘busy evading the enemy, This was because in the rosters that the Japs were
sble to capture, they could tell that there were many more officers who were
not ot accounted for including Hejor Arnold, Lt Heib, end Pvt Mangemelli all
Bmericens, The enemy which sometimes reach as many as 800 Japs and Ganaps

mopping up
of malards and equipment end supplies were destroyed or lost especailly
when they have to eross the rivers during the floods.

Unite of the 14th Infentry, under It Joaquin Dwncan fought the Japs
in the Mallig reglon of Isabela until the middle of 1943 when it had to
guspond its operations due to lack of arms and ammunitions, Lt Franois A
Canp in Cagayan also carried on the fight until he was captured someBimes

10 -
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4n 1943. The 2rd Bn under Major Menucl P Enriques continued de.
in Pangasinan end Nueva Vizeaya. Haj Enr: surrenu.

."the Japs at Bagulo on 13 frril 1943, Cavt Romule & Manriques who had j.

. “the 2nd Bn snd was at this time the Ex 0, asswmed command of the “nd Bn,
The 2nd Bn under Capt Manriques (now a Lt~Colonel end stydying at Fort Leaven-
worth) eontinued the fight end grew into a 1ittle less than & regiment so that
when Col Russell W. Volekrann orgenised the USAFIP, NL commend, the 2nd Bn,
leth Inf, AUS became the 1th Inf, USAFIP, HL.

In January, 1944 Mejor irnold received a message from Col Volckmann
requesting him to report to Col Volckmann's Headquarters. Major Armold,
however, was not sble to get out of Pinappagan due to the presence of large
eneny troops still around Pimappagan and Jones. In the first week of Octo-
ber 1944 situation essed up and Maj Arnold seoing the need for more mem,

ueted eround 40 men into the Army of the United States. These men were
pleked in recognition of their loyslty and the great sserifice they hed
made for the preservation of the 14th Inf, s,

Sometimes in the middle of Ostober, 19/4 Maj Armold left our wnit in
Pineppagen and Jones in order to confer with Col Volckmann as to who should
command the 14th Inf. Maj 4rnold's intention was to get back the commend of
the 1/th Inf inasmuch as he was the most ranking officer left after Col §
Neker was captured, The outcomo of the eonference was however, the assign-
mont of Maj Armold s CO, 15th Inf, USAFIP, NL and the incorporation of the
remnents of the 14th Inf, AUS which were under me at that time dnto the
14th Inf, USAFIP, NL on 2¢ October 1944. From hereon the sctivities of the
romnants of the 14th Inf, #US who had joined the 1ith, 1lth, €6th, and 15th
Inf Regte of USAFIP, NL can ‘be gathered in the battles that those regiments
fought in the liberation of the Cagayan, Isabela, Nueva Vizcaya, Pangasinen
end Tlecos provirces of Northern Luson,

which cers and men of the 14th Inf AUS had joined, In my humble opin-
don the #ficers and mon of the 14th Inf, US under Col Guillermo Nekar
1

hed mad worthy col ‘the and oper-
:l‘lu vardous wmits of the USAFIP, NI eommend under Col Volekmann
antry Regiments.

mm::nmuu.uu:,-dxmm}

8/ Arturo D:
ARTURO D.
u.%,\ A8

A TRUE COPY:

Notes Originel file is attached in the 201 file
of Major Arture Dingeong, AUS, at Proj "J".
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15th Infantry, P.i.
Tuna, La Union A

16 Septenber 1945

14th Infantry
Lieut-Golonel PARKER GALVERT
Infantry Commander, USAFIP, NL

1. In compliance to your query regarding certatn facts of the
Lth Infantry while I was connected with this orgenization, the
following infromation is furnisheds

2. In the early part of April 1942, T was assigned to the
14th Infantry, Ph, by Headquarters, USFIP. At that time, Lieut-
Col. Everett Warner was the C.0. Lieut-Gol. Guillermo Nakar was
the E.0, Iieut-Col. Warner however, had already left for Casiguran where h
he intended o get & boat so as to reach China, He was accompanied
by Capt. Georze Scholey and Lieut. Neolson as well as two chinamen.
Col. Warner, however, is understood to have gotten off the boat at
Palanan and later surrendered to the Japs. Capt Scholey, Lieut.
Nicoldson and the two chinamen were reported to have been captured
by a Jap submarine off Aparri, ;

3. After Lieut.-Col. Warner had left his command, Lieut,~Col
Nakar became the C.0, and I was made C.0. of the Headquarters Bn.
After the fall of Coreegidor, Col Nakar contacted thru one of his
officers by Lieut.-Col. Kalakua in an attempt to have him surrender.
Col, Nakar vwas persuaded not to surrender but as an alternative dis-
banded all but about 200 of his 800 men and some of his approximately
80 officers. The Regt'l CP then moved up the Cagayan River from the
Vieinity of Jones to the vinity of Pinappagan where radio contact was
established with SIPA at the later part of Juno 1942, Som after this,
Gen Mac Arthur in a radiogram to the C,0, 14th Infantry, PA, announced
that, as a reward for not surrendering the unit, the 1th Infantry
would be inducted into the AUS, about 200 men and 40 officers were
50 inducted into the AUS in July 1942.

4. TIn September 1942, communication with SWPA was ended when a

large Japanese force located our radio and G?, abtached ns and cap-
tured the radlo set. Col Nakar was not at the Regtl P at the time
but he was captured shortly after. After that time, I assumed command

of all soldiers and officers who were not yet disbanded or captured

or killed, Tn June 1944, I heard of another branch of the 1ith Infan~

try operating under Major “anriques who was under Col, Volckmann, Con=
tact was established as soom as possible, I understand that Major F.nriquel, i
who had been C.0., 2nd Bn., 14th Infantry, PA, did not surrender unti

& later date and after the capture of Lieut.-Golonel Nakar, claimed ca have
been the C.0. of the 14th Infantry, I do not know how many troops he

hag initially but T do know that most of his troops, excepb the Visayan
soldiers
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soldiers nunbering about 60, had been disbanded upon orders from
Lieut.-Col Nakar immediately after the fall of Corregidor, Major
Exkiquez had been promoted to liajor, P4, early in 1942 but he
received no subsequent promotion thru the l4th Infantry altho he
claimed that he should have assimilated the rank of Lieut.-Colonel
because he had been G-27for the 11th Divieion at the outbreak of the
war and had only been a Gaptain.

5. Enclosed herewith are two letters from Lieut. Col. Guillermo
Neker after his surrender to the Japanese zmm entresting his soldiers
and officers to surrender.

/s/ R, H. Arnold
R. H, ARNOID

" Lieut. -Colonel, AUS, 15th Infantry, P, A.
Comnanding

ha

Encls:
Two letters of Lieut-Col, G, Nakar

4 TRUE COFY:

/s/ Parker Calvert

/t/ PARKER CALVERT
It Col, Infantry, AUS
Infantry Commander, USAFIP NL
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File No. GSXRP Subject: Status of 14th Inf (PA)

(1)

FROM: Chief, 43j Br T0: Dir
THRI:

Rec Pers Div DATE: 25 Mar 46
Legal Off

1. Summarized below is the story of the 14th Inf (PA), based on
a narrative of Capt ARTURO DINGCONG, former Regtl Adj, attached hereto
(Incl 1, Tab 4). The following developments in the organization's his-
+tory are perbinent to a proper determination of its status:

a. In the early part of Jan 42, remnants of various PA units
withdrawing from northern and western Luzon met in Aritao, Nueva Viz-
caya. Cut off from the USAFFE forces to the South, these units pooled
their strength of some 800 men and were reformed as the lst Provisional
Guerrilla Regt under Lt Col EVEREIT L. WARNER. Subordinste officers
were: Maj MaNUEL P, ENRIQUEZ, Ex Off and CO, Hq Bnj Capt TARREN 4,
HINION, Regtl 4dj and €O, lst Bn; and Lt Col GUILLERNO NAKAR, CO 24 Ba.

b. In Feb 42, Gen "aciRTHUR's hq redesignated the unit as the
Uth Inf (PA).

¢. Upon the surrender of Bataan, Lt Col WARNER and a few of
his officers and enlisted men left for Casiguran Bay with the intention
of making their way to China. The Regt was thereupon placed under the
command of Lt Col NAKAR by order of Gen WAINWRIGHT.

d. Following the surrender of Corregidor, officers and men
not actually needed in the Regtl CP were "tactically dispersed" and ins-
tructed to pather and transmit intelligence to designated officers.
About 70 enlisted men and 10 officers accompanied the Regl Staff when
the hq was moved to Pinappagan on 13 May 42. leanwhile, mobile patrols
in the Cagayan, Northern Isabela and lueva Vizcaya provinces, under laj
ENRIQUEZ, Lt CAMP and Lt LONGNO, were engaged in sabotage and harrsssing
the enemy. 3

e. On 29 Jun 42 rad contact was established with Australia,
SWPA outlined the Unit's mission as one of gathering and transmitting
intelligence, The current strength of the Regt was reported as follows:
62 officers and 960 enlisted men, 3 Officers and 140 enlisted men of the
PC attached.

£, On 14 Jul 42 Col NAKAR received a rad from Gen MackRTHUR
authorizing inddction of the ®% PA personnel under hie command into the
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Status of 14th Inf (PA)  (cont'd.)

4US. Seme rad authorized issuance of army serial numbers from the fol-
lowing blocke: 10626000 to 10626999 for enli-ted men and 0-88070 to
0-288169 for officers,

g. Some difficulties were encountered in completing the in-
duction procese because units of the Regt were scattered over a wide
area. According to Capt DTUGCON

",..the officers and men in the regimental Command Post

ant vielnity were imediately inducted into the AUS and given ASH.
{IN OBTNa and Lt JULTAN PERDEGUEROS were delesated and sent
he induction of the men and officers of the iq Bn and let Bn
JANUEL P, ENRTOQUEZ was delezated to induct the 2nd Bn.,
FhiCEFst Hhatitiqarvas spread out in Nueva Vizcays and Fastern Pangasinan.
In view “of the distance and the difficulties of transportation

and commmication the induction was slow and delayed, especially in
the units of the 2nd Bn, Col NAKAR, however, in order to be fair to

all ordered that all inductions be dated 14 July 1942. Because of
this he sent a message to SWPL stabing that all officers and men were
inducted into the AUS on 1, July 1942..." (Note: The three officers
mentioned in quotation have not survived.

h. Errors were also made in the assignment of army serial
nunbere, particulerly in the case of officers, so that numerous dis-
crepangies now exist.

i. TIn Jul the Japanese forces launched an offansive against
the 14th Inf and succeeded in capturing the Regbl Cp, rad apparatus
and records. Some of the officers and men surrendered along with Col
MAKAR on 29 Sep 42. Capt DINGGONG himself was ambushed and captured
on 15 Sep 42.

j. Following NAKAR's surrender, the organization dispersed,
a few of its comonent units opersting independently of each other.
the Hg group, consisting of some 60 enlisted men and 7 officers, came
unﬁex- the command of (then) Maj R. H, ARNOLD, the ranking AUS officer.
Upon his escape from the Japanese an 23 Oct 42, Capt DINGCONG reported
to Maj ARNOLD. This unit remained intact thought relatively -mactivp in
the vicinity of Pinappagan until 28 Oct 44, when it was incorporat:
within the reorganized 14th Inf under USAFIP, NL. About 40 additi nsl
enlisted men were inducted into the AUS by Maj ARNOLD during the first
week of Oct A/

k. Other 14th Inf unite operating independently were: a group
under Lt JOAQUIN DUNOAN which fought in the Ma 1lig region until mid-43,
when operations were suspended because of a shortage of arme and ammu-
nition; and a unit under Lt FRANCIS A, CAMP in Cagayan, active until
its CO was captured some time in 1943.

1. 4 larger group consisting of remnants of the 2d Bn, 14th Inf, co
continued resistance in eastern Pangasinan and Nueva Vizcaya under the
connand of Maj jyy
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command of lfaj MANUEL P. ENRIQUEZ UNTIL HIS surrender on 13 Apr 43
when it was taken over by its Ex Off, (then) Capt ROMULO 4 MANRTQUE:
This unit gradually developed into almost full regt strenzth and, in
Oct 44, wae reorganized as the 14th Inf under USAFTP, NL. It was at
this time also that the eastern branch of the Regt, which had been un-
der ARNOLD's comnand, was incorporated within the reorganized 14th Inf.,

2. Tnclosed statement of Lt Col R. H. ARNOLD (Incl 2, Tab B),
former CO of the Hq Bn and leader of the eastern branch of the Regt fol-
lowing NaKiR's surrender (see per 1j, above), contains these additional
datas

a. -After the fall of Corregidor, It Col NAKAR was persuaded |/
not to surrender. 4s an alternative, he disbanded "all but about 200
of his 800 men and some of his approximately 80 officers."

b. When S¥WPA, as a reward for his refusal to surrender, auth-
orized NAKAR to induct the personnel of his command into the AUS, gbout
200 men and 40 officers were so inducted.

c. After NaKAR's surrender, ARNOLD "assumed command of all
soldiers and officers who were not yet disbanded or captured or killed."
The statement continues: "In June 1944, I heard of another branch of
the Lith Infantry operating under lajor MANRIQUEZ who vas under Col
VOLCKMANN. Contact was established as soon as possible. I understand
that Major ENRIQUEZ, who had been Co. 0., 2nd Bn., Lith Infantry, PA, did
not surrender until a later date and, afterthe capture of Lieut.-
Colonel NAKAR, claimed to have been the C.O. of the 14th Infantry. I
do not know how nany tpoops he had initially but I do know that mosb of
h;g troops, excert the Yicayan soldiers nunt 2_ahou

11t a=C: NAKAF Mmum
Qf‘ Corregidor,,."

3. Confirmation of statement referred to in par 1f, above, is
contained in G/H, dated 25 Jun 45, which originated in the GA Sec,
USAFFE TG (incl 3, Tab G), In par 3 thereof, a message from NacARTHUR
to NAKAR, dated 12 Jul 42, is quoted as follows:

"ALL OFFICERS PHILIPPINE ARMY YOUR FORCE 4PPOINTED OFFICERS
ARMY US IN PA GRADES NOW HELD EFFECTIVE ON DATE OF ACCEPTANCE STOP ALL
THIRD LIEUTENANTS APPOINIED SECOND LIEUTEVANTS STOP YOU MAY ENLIST ALL
P4 SOLDIERS YOUR FORCE IN ARMY US IN GRADES NOW HELD IN P4 STOP,.,"

In par 4 of same G/N, reference is made to NAKAR'S reply, dated
15 Jul 42, stating: "Officers of 14th Inf PA accepted commission in
USA and EV of this regiment all enlisted in USA as of July 14, 1942."

4a !
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4. In reply to an inquiry by this Div, the only information re
the L4th Inf available at GHQ AFPAC is a rad from YacARTHUR to NAKAR,
dated 16 Jul 42, stating that the organization "retains designation as
Uth Inf PA despite the fact that personnel now belong to Army of the
United States" (Incl 4, Tab D).

5. Incls 5 and 6 (tabs B and F) represent memoranda to officers
listed men of lith Inf, dated 14 Jul 42, signed by (then) lst It
“Rmo DINGCONG, Regtl Adj, and Lt Col GUILLEAHO WAKAR, CO, respective-
1y, announcing that authority had been received £o enlist all enlisted
men and appoint all officers in the AUS. Tnel 7 (Teb ! is another memo
of 14th Inf Hq, dated 5 4ug 42, outlining the procedure to be followed
in enlisteing personnel in the AUS.

6. Unile it seems clear from the foregoing that the persomnel of
the 14th Inf on active duby on or about 14 Jul 42 was given 4US status
as & roward for continuing its resibtance against the enemy, no authen-
tic information is available as 0 the exact or even approximate strength
of the Regt at that time, Date now in our possession contain these dis-
crepancies: 2

a. There is the testimony of Capt DINGCONG (see par le) that on
29 Jun 42, when rad contact was established with Australia, the
strength of the 14th Inf was reported to be 62 officers and 960 enlist-
ed men, The fact that about two weeks later SWPA issued a block of
1000 army serial numbers for enlisted and 100 for officers lends sup-
port to this allegation.

b. It Col ARNOLD contends that after the fall of Corregidor
all but 200 of NaKiR's 200 men and some of his 20 officers ere dis-
banded (see par 2a, above)l Capt DINGCONG's version of the same
development is stated thus: "In View of the scarcity of food, the lack
of sufficient arms, ammunition and medicine, and in order to easily
hide the men and at the same time facilitate the fathering and relay-
ing of enemy infornation for higher headquarters, It Gol NaKiR ordered
that the officers and man not actually needed in the Regtl CP be tac-
tically dispersed..." (paze 6, Incl 1).

7. Even geeater confusion existe as to the number of enlisted
men and officers actually enlisted or appoin ELM. The mo-t
concrete evidence of such inductions now avaj.l&ble exists in the form
of six rosters prepared in the course of the past few mont}
DINGCONG (Inels &, 9, 10, 11, 12 and 13, Tabs H, I, J, K,
After catalvvuinn the names on these rosters and ellm na‘t1ng duplicate
listings, they were found to total about 398 enlisted men and 69 Of=-
ficers, It is believed that for the most part this group can be con-
sidered as eligible for confirmation as AUS persommel, Because of the
confusion involved, it is not considered wise to confer AUS status
automatically upon all personnel whose names appear on DIVGCONG's ros-
ters. Uhile the rosters may be used as a #uide, each individual's af-
@adavit and supporting documents will have to determine the decision
made in each case.
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8. One of these rosters indludes the names of 62 enlisted men
"recruited by then liaj ARNOLD" (incl 12), Presumably, this group is
the sane one referred to by Capt DINGCONG in per 1j, above, as having
been enlisted in Oct 44, Lt Col ARNOLD @id not have the authority to
recruit or enlist men in the 4US. Unlike the case of Trp C, 26th Cav
(PS), which was authorized by SWPA o maintain its strength and there-
fore enlist replacements, she only authority SWPAestended to Lt Col
NAKAR in Jul 42, as clearly stated in the rad itself (see par 3 of incl
3), was to induct enlisted men and appoint officers in the AUS already
under NAKAR's comnand. Had SpPAintended to grant authority o enlist
personnel in the 14th Inf as replacements were neded, it is believed
that the 12 Jul rad would have been as clear on the point as the rad
to Maj PRaEGER to Trp G, 26th Cav (PS). It is therefore recommended
that the group of men enlisted by Lt Col ARNOLD, as well as others who
were not under NKAR's command on 14 Jul 42 but were inducted later, be
processed as PA and not AUS personnel.

9. In addition to the six rosters submitted by Capt DINGCONG, two
others have come to the attention of this Div. On (Incl 14, Tab ) is
an original roster representing the make-up of Co "B, st Bn, 14th Inf
under 1t J. k. LONGNO, as of 30 Jun 42, or about two weeks prior to the
receipt of awthority from SWPA to enlist 14th Inf Persomnel in the AUS,
Only 18 Names on this list appear on any of DINGCON's rosters, but it is
congeivable that men in this unit mey have been enlisted in the AUS. The
second list (Incl 15, Tab O) containes names of military personnel now
serving with PA units who claim to have been "regnlar members of the 1ith
Inf (AUS)." Of the persons listed, only 7 names are to be found on one
or more of DINGCONG's rosters. It is believed that in the case of these
two groups the wisest course to follow would be to consider each case on
ite merits with the view of determining wheter or not the individuals
involved were actually inducted into the 4US. Such a determination will
be greatly simplified after their affidavite and all supporting documents
are availsble for dtudy. The burden of proof, however, should rest with
the claimant.

10, Tt is apparent that a wide d pangy exists between the mumber
of men allegedly on duty at the time rad contact with Australia was ex-
tablished and the number accounted for in the rosters describéd in per 7,
above. Further investigation will be necessary before this discrepancy
can be removed. The problem to be solved ie the exact strength of the
14th Inf at the time authority was received to enlist its personnel in the
AUS and, complementing this, the number of men, if any, who were on duty
in areas removed from the Regtl CP but who may have been enlisted at a
later date on the basis of the same authority.

11. This Div has already contacted Lt Cols ARNOLD and VANRIQUEZ,
each of whon commanded remnants of the Regt independently of the other
after NAKAR's and ENRIQUES's surrender, in order to gain a clearer
perspective of the history of the 14th Inf and, particularly, to reach
& definite conclusion as to the exact number of men actually inducted
into the AUS. Unless this is conclusively determined, this Div may
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£ind itself swenped with claims to AUS status from persomnel in the
Lith Inf who joined that orgenizstion after Jul 42, It will be noted,
in this connection, that the Station List of recognized guerrilla units,
10th 1D, dated 5 Jan 45, gives the strength of the 14th Inf after 9 Jan
45 as 110 officers and 2648 enlisted men. It is therefore believed
that while the group of men licted on rosters now in the possession of
this Div can be processed at this time, further investigation must be
made to determine the actual number of enlistments in the AUS made in
Jul 42, After the necessary data is obtained, appropriate action can
be taken in all cases still waprocessed. In the course of processing
the first group, undoubtedly additional light will be thrown on the
problem of whether AUS enlistments were actually effected in units se-
parated from the 14th Inf Regtl Cp.

12, It is to be noted thet among the personnel now ready for pro-
cessing, some officers and enlisted men were given promobion after con-
tact with Australia wes broken and after the 14th Inf wes reorganizdedd
under USA4FIP, 'NL., Tt is believed that all claims to promotions should
be adjudidcated on the same basis as that employed in the case of other
AUS personnel who served with the guerrillas. In the case of enlisted
men, acceptable evidence of promotion widl be submitted, In the case
of officers, each claimant will be required to submit admiseible evi-
dence of promotion and proof that duties performed were commensurate
with grade clained. Claims of officere will also be verified with guer-
rilla leaders concerned. In the case of enlicted men duly inducted in-
to the AUS and later appointed officers in the guerrillas, it is be-
lieved that such per-ons should be offered the choise of retaining
their enlisted AUS status or accepting their guerrilla appointments in
the PA,

Because of the errors made in the assignment of serial mum-
bers to officers of the L4th Inf, and becsuse some of the enlisted men
have forgotten their army serial numbers, it is believed that further
confusion will be avoided by reassignmbng army serial numbers to those
officers and enlisted men whose status in the AUS is confirmed from a
new block of serial mumbers.

L. In view of the considerations set forth above, the Chief,
4dj Br, recommends that:

8. All P4 enlisted men who served with the 14th Inf in Jul 42
and can submit acceptable evidence indicating induction into the
AUS be confirmed as AUS personnel.

b. All PA officers on duty with the 14th Inf in Jul 42 b4
processed as AUS personnel, provided that incontrovertible evidence of
appointment and/or subsequent promotion is presented, irrespective of
the fact that their names may appear on bhe of DINGCONG's rosters.
Burden of proof will at all times rest with the claimant,

C. “any enlistments in the 14th Ine made after Ju1 42
u »




Status of 14th Inf (PA)

DECLASSIFIED
ND BEZO

018

Authority.

(Cont *d.)

—

when it is clear that cuch enlistments were effected without authority,
be regarded as PA inductions and processed accordingly.

d. Enlisted men confirmed in the AUS who later accep{:ed guer-
rilla appointments be allowed to choose between continuance of AUS en- -
listed status or acceptance of appointment in PA,

e. Upon Confirmation, new army serial numbers from blocks
suthorized to this Division be assigned to each person concerned.

£. In order to expedite processing of 14th Inf personnel,

Br, be granted authority to determine grades of 14th Inf
officers claiming AUS status on the basis of evidence submitted with-
out forwarding each case to the Dir for consideration and approval.

the Chief, Adj

15, Tnile processing

of 14th Inf personnel whose names are avail-

able in this Div is under wa -, this Branch will continue its investiga-
tion to determine actual strength of 1ith Inf and number of AUSinduc~

tions effected in Jul 42, as suggested in pars 10 and 11, above,

completion of same, appropriate action will be taken.

15 Incls:

s/t P.B. H, IR,

Tnel 1 - Brief History, Lth Inf

Incl 2 - Itr, &
Incl 3 - G/N, G S

LD, incls w/d
ec, USAFFE TG w/1 incl
Incl 4 - 1st Ind, AFPAC, to lMsaform, th1s hq, w/1 incl

Incl 5 ~ lMemo, l4th Inf, dtd 14 Jul A4

Incl 6 - Confidential

Incl 7 - Memo, Lith Inf, dtd
Incl 2 & DINGCONG Roster No. D-1
Incl 9 - DINGCONG Roster No. D-2

Incl 10 -
Incl 11 -
Incl 12 -
Incl 13 -
Incl 1 -
Inel 15 -

A TRUE COPY:

DINGCONG Roster MNo.
DINGCONG Roster No.
DINGCONG Roster No.

DINGCONG Roster No. D-

Roster, "B" Co, lst
Roster M

GEORGE R PHILIP
Captain CAV
Dir, Investigation

Memo, dtd 14 Ju'l. L2

5 dug 42

-3
D-1,
D-5

-6
Bn, 1ith Inf

Upon
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HISTORY OF MY GUERRILLA ACTIVITIES
WITE THE 14TH INFANTRY

$ 1. 0n 7 April 1942, I left Nativided, Pangasinan, with a group ot 30 v \D
Civilians for the southern towns of Nueva Viscaya, bringing with us salt for L. | 3
sale tothe inhabitants of that area. Ve took the Villa Verde Trail across A\~ |
the Caraballo .mountains that separate the two provinces, Ny companions and Y
I arrived at Aritao, Nueva Vizeays, 9 April 1942,

2. In Aritao a Filipiro officer held me for questioning because T &
vas mistaken for a Japanese mestizo and & spy. 1 was brought o Dete, Aritao,.
2 remote haulet of that town, where Colo Nakar had his head~ »
duarters, T found out that this officer vho brought me to Colonel Nakar's '
headquarters was 2nd Lieut. Honorio S. Quines who later becage my commanding
officer in Co. "EM, 14th Infantry, ;

. At Colonel Nakar's headquarters I was questioned and properly idem— :
fifled as a public school teacher of Rosales, Pangasinen, married to a teacher'
from Natividad, Pangasinan. As soon as this headquarters was. satisfied with
By personal status, I signified my desire to enlist as private in the 14th
Infantry, I was then asked if I hed any firears. I informed 2nd Lt Homorio
& Quines that I could provide myself with a firearn because, in fact T had :
in my possession one pistol belonging to lst Lt Robin gbao Bn_Cordr, 72nd Inf, 3§ &

{ PA) and could also secure a rifle from 2nd Lt Teodoro Sipagang (Plat Ldr, &
{0 Lo, U0Y, 9lst Inf PA) whon I left behind in my house at barrio Batchelor, N
Nativided, pangasinan. I informed 2nd Lt Honorio S. Quines further that these

{ officers fogether with their men, were fully armed, aside from 2nd Lt Seve-
Fino Antiporda and his men (Co, MA", 72nd Inf,PA) who were lying low from the enemy
at barrio Tamat, Tayug, Pangasinan, I also told It. Honorio §, Quines that
I vas personally acquainted with 2nd Lt. Gregorio Jiontedo (91st Inf. PA) who was
keeping his men at San Micolas, Pangasinan, Thus on 10 April 1942 T was emlisted
and inducted sg priwetetn Co. ", 14th Infantry, by 2nd Lt Homorio S,Quines

¢rs at Bete, Aritag, Nueva Vizcaya.

-\ On 11 4pril 1942, ohie day after my enlistment in this unit, I was
ordered be-dolivesea—neocdge addresied to the officers mentionsd in’the preceeding
paragraph hieTeof, inviting them and their men to join the lhth Infantry, Besides
this message, I carried also with me orders from Colonel Nekar's headquarbers
organizing the remnants of the 72nd Inf and 91st Infantry, PA inestern Pang-
asinan.as Co'"gh, 14th Infantry, USAFFE, and directing this company to attach

the Jap garrison at Tayug, Pangasinan, 80 as to protect the 14th Infantry in
southern Nueva Vizeaya from enemy threat in the rear,

5. I came to know the contents of the message and orders mentioned in
the preceding paragraph hereof, because Lt Severino Antiporda, Lt Teodoro
Sipagang and Lt Gregorio lontejo held their conference on 13 April 1942 in my
house at barric Batchelor, Natividad, Pangasinan, as soon as I had delivered
same to them. In this conference it was decided that at 5100 4. the follow—
ing day, 14 Al 1942, Lt Antipo;dn should attfchlthe Jap garrison et Tayug,

i ) oceu; Micolas, inan,
P Lt enstlo slanld cocupy S Micolen, Pavesspen,
6. nis plan of action was carried out on 14 April 1942, as agreed upon,
P 2 £ 4 P 7o

P YR { %4, oFcnppl wviionns 2
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"o “Unsortunately, Lt Severino Antiporda, Sgt Corpuz and one privgte of bis command
were killed in sction during the raid on the Jep garrison at layug, Pangasinan.
On the side of the Japs, 11 of the 12 men composing the garrison wereMlled.
After this raid, 2d Lt Gregorio Montejo assumed command of Company "GN and
renained therecn mtil 12 April 1943 when the 3d Bn, 14th Infantry, vas organized
'\}1“ eastern Pangasinan, T Bigliyz, 610 7 bu Copl hiiied 1 Thage, TR L2
v gertlir A0 L RN AT ST T
SYY 7. on 2 spril 1942, a tricklod of Japs ron tho sneny garrison at Asingan,
i Pengasinan, recaptured thétowns of Tayug, San Nicolas and Fatividad from the
N Hends of the 14th Tufantry. The reid described in the preceding paragreph hersof
was, as far as I kmew, the first combat by elements of the
14t} Infentry in eastemn Pangasinan since I joined this unit.

T L ~
Ll 8 On 16 April 1942, two days after the raid at Tayug, Pangasinan, I
v s ) )
Ny returned to Colonel Nakaris headquarters at Bete, Aritao, Mueva Vizcaya, to
<
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L , o
A ?;f’é;»g’r»l ¢

N - deliver a report from Lt Gregorio lomtejo, the new 00,"GH Co, 14th Infantry,
1 A——Soon after the recapture of the towns of Tayug, Nativided and Sen Nicolas by
$ \\ the Japs, another guerrilla leader named liajor Miguel Acosta esteblished his head—
quarters in eastern Pangasinan, To consolidate its forces for a more effective
\  action against the enemy, Hesdquarters, l4th Infantry, oxdered its Co 1M to
Y leave eastern Pangasinen, proceed to Nueva Vizcaya, and operate in the rear of
! t _the mother unit along Highway No. 5 to the south.
RN 3 v
\:‘ 9. In the early part of June 1942, I participated in ambushing a Jap
convoy at Piut, Carenglaan, Nueva Ecija, this embuscade having been led by Sgt.
jarcelo S, Quines, brother of Det Comdr Lt Homorio S. Quines. In this ambush,

/we killed 32 Japs, of whom 2 were believed to be officers because of their
There was no casualty on our side.

N / sebers and silver stars in their insignias.
§ N i 10, On or about the middle of July 1942, I participated in another ambuscade
3¢ personally commended b Det Condr, Lt Honorio S. Quines on Highway To. 5 at
SNy OCapintalan, Sta Fe, Nueva Vizcaya. In this encounter 56 killed and several

|00 wounded were accounted for, of whom 3 were belleved to be officers, Aside from
| ¢ 4 this, we elso destroyed two enemy south-bound trucks loaded with rice, and
“}S ;“ other supplies.
N . :
R 11, This incident made the enemy furious) Carenglaan and other points
The 14th Infantry's area of operations

along Highway No. 5 occupying the rear of
were, for some time, the seat of an intensive mopping-up activity conducted

& by the efiny. Because of this enemy operation, I was ordered by Lt Homorlo S,
Quines to take a platoon of Co WEM across the hills to Pangasinan and locate a
NN suitable bivauac area for our men in case the situation grew worse, From

T Capintalan we went to eastern Pangasinen andlocated an improvised camp in the

i ©, . vestern slopes of the Caraballo mountains just above the barrio of Batchelor,

WM\ Natividad, Pangasinan, After putting my platoon in this new bivouac, I left

{ for Carandaan, Nueva Ecija, via Imigan, Nueva Vizdya .

12, At Bete, Aritao, Nueva Vizcays, on 24 July 1942 I overtook Lt Homorio
va Teija, to indu £

\\. 5. Quines who was on his way to Caranglasn, Nue! induct the men o

Co "EM, 14th Infantry, into the Army of the United States. In the school building

e Bug ey aigs me !
17




DECLASSIFIED
Authority N BE3075”

of Bete, soon after my arrival, I was inducted into the Ay of the United
~ States with the rank of sergeant. My induction with this rank was a surprise
| _\S to me, but Lt Honorio S, Quines informed me that my promotion to the rank
Y i) of sergeant was received by him on 1 July 1942, effective on the same date.
\/\ %t that Instance, Lt Quines handed to me my promotion order and paper of
. induction into the Amy of the TUnited States. &

S 13. In the evening of 24 July 1942, Lt Fonorio S. Quines, his body~

‘. guards and myself left Aritac and proceeded to Camp Talatalan, Caranglaan,
Nueva Ecija, vieh Sta Clars, Aritao, Nueva Vizcaya. On 28 July 1942, as soon
as 811 the men of Co "EW, 1ith Infantry, were inducted into the Army of the
United States, ve left for eastem Pangasinan, We reached the camp of Co"G,
14th Infantyy, under Lt, Gregorio Yontejo at Delumpinas, San Nicolas, Pang-
asinan, at midnight of 2 J ly 1942. The following day Lt Honorio S Quines,
Lt Permando Lopez, myself and some Sif of Co UM proceeded to Batchelor,
Netivided, Pangasinan, Here my platoon 6f 23 i, of Co "B, were inducted
by Lt Honorio 5. Quines into the Army of the United States.y

14, On or about the middle of August 1942, Lt Fonorio S. Quines, myself
and my platoon left our bivouac in the hills of Batehelor, Natividad, Pang=
asinan, and proceeded to Caranglean, Nueva Ecijs, by teling the trails across
the mountains to Capintalan on Highway No. 5, with the intention of ambushing
Jap convoys along the way, However, our plan was foiled by the enemy, in
that we were forced to take a detour toward Piut, Nueva Ecija, Here we had
o 1de low for some time, because the Japs intensified their mopping-up
operations in the southern sector of Nueva Vizcaya, These enemy operations
spread to the provinces of Isabela, Nueva Ecija and Pangasinan, Unhappy
incidents followed this enemy agtivity and demoralized a big portion of our
men, especially when Colonel Guillermo Nakar was captured at Pinagpagan,
Jones, Isabela, in the latter part of Sept. 1942,

15, To escape destruction following the capture of Colonel Nakar,

Lt Honorio S. Quines moved with my platoon to eastern Pangasinan. Themst

of Co "EM were left in Caranglaan, Nueva Ecija, under Sgt Marcelo S. Quines

and Sgt Douglas Lopez, From September 1942 up to the early part of 1943,

the mopping—up operations of the enemy were furious. During this period,

many officers and enlisted men of the 14th Infantry surrendered when their
 families were ‘taken as hostages by the enemy, snd still more were either
\\_;-oaptured or killed in sporadic encounters with enemy patrols.

16. Our stay in eastern Pangasinan during this period, with Det Comdr
Lt Honorio S. Quines, was devoted to intelligence work, organization, and
training of our men.

F3

n 17. At about the latter part of October 1942, Lt Honorio S. Quines
f \ left Pangasinan and went to Manila to join ugujmjm__e%nrrimz who became
;’\ (5 00, 14th Infantry, after the capture of Colonel Guille¥iic Nakar. ‘The
EJ principal purpose of the Lt Quines' trip to Manils was to get instructlons
j Prom liajor Puriquez regarding an intelligence network to be-established
owr the area assig to 03 "E" which covered the northern part of Nueva
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Eoija, the southern section of Nueva Vizcays, and all of eastern pangasinan,

Tt Quines Loft me behind to take commend of the boys during his sbsence, with

N sionstions however to see or meet him at the Crystal Arcade on the Escolta,
lanila, every 15th and 30th of the month so as %o keep him posted on the
militery situation within this sector. However, during the days that followed,
practically everyone in the guerrilla forces was compelled by circumstances

%o 1ie low, except in cases where action was necessary ‘to promote the resistance
movement, so that I failed to meet or see Lt Honorlo S, Quines at the designated
place on such dates. In this connection it must be mentioned that on 12

P eoomber 1942 Camp Talstalan, at the little hamlet of Burgos, Caranglaan, Nueva
Ecija, was raided by the ememy. The Japsscaptured all the records of Co 'E"
prior to this date. After this raid, the entire personnel of Co "EY moved to
eastern Pangasinan, 5 o

18, Thinking that Det Comdr, Lt Honorio S. Quines was also captured by

the eneny when I failed to see or hear anything about him after he left for
Manila, I joined on 7 December 1942 the outfit of Capt Pedro Balagot who was
chief, 0-2 Section, USFIP, NL. From this date up to 1 April 1943 when I met Major
Sonulb . Menriques, my work was practically all dealing with intelligence. "
Meanwhile, I was also cooperating with other guerrilla units or groups operating
in eastern Pangasinan, especially with the area counter-intelligence organizations
Iitisted in May 1942 which was to become a little later the Pangasinan Anti-Orime
Servics under the commend of Lt Colonel Alfredo B, Balingao. As operative of
Golonel Balingao's staff guerrilla CIC, which functioned presumsbly as a civi-
Jian police auxiliary of the local admimistration in e astern Pangasinan, I could
‘hus easily secure the information needed by C-2, USFIP, NL, under the overall
direction of Lt Colonel liartin loses, AUS, regarding enemy movement, persomel,
arms, fuel end supplies obtaining in eastern Pangasinan and adjacent areas.
/19, Vhen Capt Pedro Balagot, surrendered to the enemy in Jensury 1943,

I got in contact with Lt Silvestre Marinas, Executive Officer, and Lt Fernando

Lopes, Junior Officer, of Co "a", 14tk Infantry, under Lt Gregorio Montejo,
/44 Justaent of my problems vers made, 8o that from the latter part of January
[ 1943 to the latter part of March 1943 I was attached to Co ngn for temporary’
| auty. ;
N

. Unexpectedly, Major Romulo A. who ded to th id
of the 14th Infantry, came to eastern Pangasinan in the latter part of March
1943, He was critically i1l of malaria at Tayug, pangasinen, and was in denger
of being captured by the Japs because he was within the area of intensive enemy
mopping -up operations, I lost no time to locate the Major just as soon as I
heard of his presence in the vieinity, I met him end invited him to come up.
with me to Betohelor, Nativided, Pangasinen, where he would be mich safer than
at Tayug. or elsewhere, T informed him that Lt Colonel Alfredo E. Balingao,
#ho was himself a guerrilla leader coozdinating guerrilla intelligence activity
in eastern Pangasinan, was the guerrilla-planted mayor of Natividad and de-
puty govemor of the area. With my assurances, Major Manriquez consented mx to
come up with me to my house at Batchelor, As soon as I hal given him quarters
at Batchelor, T utilized the persomnel of Oo B, 14th Infantry, to serve as
Swnnars to warn me whenever or just in case Jap patrols came to the place where
Major Manriquez was being kept.
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21. Convinced that he was safe in this new hideout, Major Manrigquez
iumediately set to organize the 3d Bn and two companies of the lst Bn, l4th
Infentry, in eastern Pangasinan, The 2d Bn of the unit was stationed in
Baguio; the lst Bn, in Isabela,

22. ‘Before completing the organization of ‘the 3d Bn, 14th Infantry, in
eastern Pangasinan, Major Manriquez sent me to Manila to locate Lt Homorio S,
Quines end Lt Saturnino Dumlao, It was a difficult mission to locate these
officers, but around the middle of July 1943 I succeeded in meeting them, I
informed them of the presence of Major Romulo A, Manriquez in Natividad, Pang-
asinan, and of the organizational work being doms by him, Thege officers came o
Pengasinan and reported to the Major for duty. Both were promoted to the mnk
of captain. Capt Honorio S, Quines was assigned €0, 3d Bn, 14th Infentry, and
Capt Saturnino Dumlao as Zx0 thereof.

23. The first company organized in mstern Pangasinan during this period
of reorganization of the 14th Infantry was Co "L". I was assigned as first
sergeant of this company on 1 April 1943 and subsequently commissioned 24
Lieutenant thereof on 12 April 1943, Upon my promotion to the rank of 2d Lt,
Sgt Penfilo P, Fernandeg was promoted to 1/Sgt amd given my former assignment
in the company, In this comnection, 1t should be emarked that Company MY,
14tk Infentry, was organized on 1 April 1943, but Major Romlo A, Menriaues

made 1t appear officially on record as of 12 April 1943, so as to conform to
the date of surrender of Major-lanuel Bnriques to the enemy and accordingly the
date vhen Najor Romulo A, lanriquez validly assumed command of the lAth
Infantry, USAFIP, NL,

2. My commission to the rank of 24 Lt, 14th Infantry, on 12 April 1943
end ny promotion to lst Lt thereof on 1 November 1943 were confimed by Special
Crder No, 44, HQS USAFIP, NL, dated 11 August 1944,

25. During the first week of February 1943, the Japs conducted another
mopping-up operation in central and northeasterm Pangasinan end captured some
guerrilla operatives whose information, squealed in the torture rooms of the
enemy garrison, led to the capture of Capt Homorio S. Quines, 06, 3d En, l4th
Infantry, at Natividad, Pangasinan, by one Cept, Ohto, tommander of the Jap
garrison at Tayug, Pangasinan, at dawn of 13 February 19

26, From 10 Apkil 1942 to July 1943 —- that is, starting from the date
of my enlistment in the 14th Infantry — Co "E" thereof had seen sevefal
changes of command from Capt Honorio S, Quines and up. When Capt Honorio 8.
Quines was made 00, 3d Bn, this unit, lst Lt Marcelo S. Quines assumed command
of Co "E", When Capt Fomrio 8 Q\lines was captured, his brother Lt Marcelo s,
Quines was also captured in San Jose, Nueva Ecija, and subseguently killed by
the enemy, The command of Co MM then passed to Lt Douglas Lopez. But Lt
Lopez was also captured while he was confering with one Capt Hidalgo of the
bureau of constabulary at San Jose, Nuava Ecije, and was likewise killed by.the
enemy, After thedeath of Lt Lopes, the dompeny was put under the command of Lt
Lorenzo Sevilleja, with Lt Cirilo Bravo as the executive officer thereof, Then
on 16 October 19. Lt Lorenzo Sevilleja was relieved of his command and this
company, resdesignated Co "I", 14th Infantry, was placed under me, I was CO,
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Cb. "I, 14th Infentry, USAFIP, NL, during the period from 16 Octobexr 1944 to’
10 January 1945. For a clearer picture of the varied career of Co "EY, 14th
Infantry, it seems pertinemt to include here the designations. given to it by
the different regimental commanders:

Designation REgimental Commander
Organized Co "B" . . . . . o ¢ o o o Col Guillermo Nakar
Co "E" t0 Co "F" ., , . . . . . . . . MNajor Manuel Enriquez
Co "FM t0 Co "I" . . . ... . . . » . Major Romulo 4. Menriquez

27. Below isa list of EM who formed the detachment of Co "E" L4th
Infantry, stationed in eastern Pangasinant

Sgt Velasco, Francisco Pvt Asuncion, Pedro
Sgt Asuncion, Fosalio C Pvt Pugal, Artemio
Cpl Acosta, Francisco Pvt Mendoza, Emilio
Cpl Nestor, Monico Pvt Nigos, Felix
Pfc Cenonizado, Jose ST Pvt Castro, Tiburcio
Pfc Nerviza, Estanislao Pvt Medrano, Agaton
Pfc Gepasin, Wilfredo Pvt Langit, Bizalino
Pfc lotas, Pedro Pt Nelnida, Micasio
vt Mico, Aubrosio Pvt liercado, Pedro
Pvt Lozeno, Lope vt Viloria, Alfonso
Pvt Oriel, Lorenzo Pvt Miranda, Federico

The cove-named El were the same EM who were with me in Co "EW, 14th Infantry,
under the commend of Capt Homorio S. Quines as of April 1942,  One enlisted mau
is not included in this partial list of pdsonnel of said company, because I
can not recall his name,

28, Soon after the capture of Cept Honorio S. Quines on 13 February 1944,
I was designated Actg Bn Comdr, 3d Bn, 14th Infantry, by Major Romulo A.
Manriquez, I held this assignment until 31 May 1944 when Capt Saturnino Dumlao
relieved me. On 1 June 1944, I was essigned S-1 and Adjutant, 34 Bn, 14th
Infentry. I held this assigrment until my appointment as 00, Oo "IN, 14th
Infantry, on 16 October 1944, On 10 Jan 1945, I was relieved of my command and
reassigned 00, Co "F", 14th Infentry, stationed at Panupdupan, Kiangen, Mt
Province, I was relisved of this command on 25 March 1945 and reassigned Regtl
Supply Officer, 14th Infantxy, holding thls assigament until 20 Nov 1945, During
the perdod from 2L Nov to 6 Dec 1945, I vas assigned to the 1st Bn, 221 Inf, PA.
Then on 7 Dec 1945 I was assigned on temporary duty with the Claims Service,
AFWESPAC, with station at Camp Spencer, La Union.

29. On 15 May 1946, I reported to the 5th Repl Depot, USA, APO 701,
for processing re my AUS status, by virtue of Special Orders No, 102, par. 7,
dated 7 May 1946, HJ USAFIP AREA QOMD, 24 Inf Div, PA.

30. Finally, I returned to Camp Spencer, la Union, on 1 June 1946 and I
was assigned to GCM No. 1 until my honorable discharge from military service
on 10 June 1946, as per Special Orders No. 116, par 9, dated 4 June 1946, Has
24 Inf Div, Ph,

A TRUE (OFY PHiyr 6 s/Gorgonio S, Canonizado
+/CORGONIO S, CANONIZADO O0-522714
Ex Capt, Infantry, PA
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HEADQUARTERS
ORTH LUZON

19 March 1946

ctions, Additions and Gomments
on History of Guerrilla Novement in
North Luzon

3
(5]

Commander-in-Chief, AFPAC
ittention: AC of §, G-2
(Thru Channels)

* * * * *

TH INFANTRY 4ND COORDINATED COMMAND - 1942 (MAKAR

The principel error in this section is the mention of co-ordi-
nated North Luzon command which was never exercised nor attempted
to be exercised by any commanding officer of the 1ith Infantry. The
14th Infantry (PA{ was organized principally from troops who had
retreated from Baguio over the mountaing in December, 1941, under
the command of Lt Cols Bonnett, Moses and Noble and had been dis
banded at Aritao upon receipt of a false report that Highway No. 5
was blocked by the enemy at Balete Pass. This error was later
discovered but only a small number of the troops were recovered in
time to accompany 1t Cols Bonnett, lioses and Noble to Bataan,
Among the troops left behind was 'ajor Xbhédn Captain) Manuel P. En-
riquez, who immediately started organizing them, Shortly afterwards
It Col (then Major) Warner arrived on the scene, Warner had been
Provost Marshal at Camp John Hay at the outbreak of the war and was
not a very good officer, being quite addicted to ligour. During the
opening days of the war he had contim s and
had_bee; the time,Xhen orders were received to eva-
cuate Baguio he was p_n__d_gn_nﬁx;a&m;ﬂ and could not accom
the main body from BAEulo. He sobered up the next day and followed
and arrived at Aritao., Here Enriquez, doubtless bdleiWing that there
would be an advantage in having an American Officer in command,
requested Warner to assume command of the forces being organized.—
Later, Lt Golonel (then Captain) Nakar arrived from the west. These
three, Enriques, Warner and Naker, formed a sort of a team in the
organization of the 1th Infentry., Enriquez did the organizing,
Nakar harrassed the Japs attempting to enter the Cagayan Valley from

the south while Warner's contrib
consuming & guarto Gay. Thru a radio at Bayombong, contact
vas established with Corregidor and the 14th Infantry was authorized

end organized,

Though there was a contact of sorts between Werner f
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and Col Horan in Bontoc, Warner never acknowledged Horan's
authority.

Following the fall of Bataan, the enemy entered the
Gagayan Valley in force and forced the 1th Infantry to
split into two perts; one gropp under the command of En-
rd into western Nueva Vizcaya and east-

The rest of the unit under Warner and Vekar
moved eastward into eastern lueva Vizcaya and Isabela, At
this Point, warner sent a radiogram to Corregidor Tequest~
ing for a cruiser to come to Palanan to pick him up, and
he then deserted his command and proceeded to Palanan to
await the boat, General Wainwright, however, is reported
‘o have sent back a reply to the efect ‘that there was no
cruiser available nor would there be one available and for
Warner "o get the hell back to his command". Warner then
reburned to the Cagayan Valley and later surrendered when
contacted by Col., Calicuka, representative of General Wain~
yright, During farner's absence, Nakar had been joined by
Uajor (then Captain) Robert Arnold who had come soubhpard
£rom Col, Horan and had been assigned to the 14th Infantry
on orders from Corregidor, Nakar and Arnold continued to o
operate a radio and, after the fall of Gorregidor, made
contact with Australia, 4t this time, according to state=
ments of Arnold, the portion of the 1/jth Infantry under
the command of Nakar was designated as the 1th Infantry
(AUS) and 21l of the officers and men were inducted into the
Army of the United States via radio and were assigned AUS
serial numbers. During this period other units in North
Luzon, seeking to establish conbact with the outside, sent
some messages to Nakar which they requested he transmit
for then to higher headquarters, Nakar's transmission of
some of such messages is evidently the reason for the as-
sumption that he was exercising some soft of coordineted
command in North Luzon, In late 1942, Nakar was captured,
‘the radio was destroyed and irnold assumed Command of the
rmants of the eastern branck of the 1/th Infantry. This
unit did not proper and its numbers steadily diclined un-
til when 4rnold was contacted by HQ, USAFIP, North Luzon,
in late 1944, its strength amounted to aboul the strength
of one company, which was merged with the western branch of the
14th Infantry at that time. Gqe@ M)

The western portion of the 14th Infantry continued to
carry on in a fairly successful manner inspite of the dif-
fieult living conditions and food and bullt up a fairly
strong organizition. However, following the enemy mopping
1p operation in 1942, Enriques deserted his command and tra-
veled with a few other officers to the vieinity of Tuba,
M, Province, where in April 1942, upon representations from
his wife, he voluntarily surrendered to the enemy,

=g
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Upon Enriques' surrender Lt Col (then Major) Romulo
4, lanriquez, next senior officer, assumed the command of
the 14th Infantry, and continued to organize and develop
the regiment until 1t was almost full strength, This wes-
tern branch of the 14th Infantry maintained comtact with
and accepted the commend of HQ USAFIP, North Iuzon, from
the time of its organization. In late 1944, lanriguez'
agents established contact with Major Arnold in eastern
Isabela. sdi the delicate situation arising out of
the fact that Major Arnold outranked Menriques as command-
ing officer of the 14th Infantry, Major irnold was trans-
ferred to teke command of the newly organized 15th Infam
try in Ilocos Norte.
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HEADQUARTERS "BA COMPANY
1ST BATTALION, 22ND INFANTRY (PA)
Luna, La Union

3 April 1946
SUBJECT: Activities of "G" Co., 14th Inf,, (AUS)
T0 : €O, 1th Infantry (AUS)

1. The "G" Go., 14th Inf. (AUS) composed of remnants of
the 9lst Infantry (USAFFE) vwho fought at Sison and Pogorrubio,
Pangasinan and vwas reorganized on December 28, 1941 at San
licolas, Pangasinan, Its reorganization continued up to the
time when the late Lt. Severino Antiporda, who was under or-
ders of the late lajor fanuel P, Enriquez (then the CO, 2nd Bn.
Lth Inf {4US), contacted my unit and handed me orders from
the Bn. Comdr re operations against the cnemy.

2. Plans for the operations to recapture Watividad, Tayug,
and San Nicolas, Pangasinan were msde. Lt, Cregorio Zipagan
was to operate at Natividad, Lt. Antiporda at Tayug and for ny
Detachment vas San Nicolas. The coordinated attach took place
on 14 Arril 1942 ab 0430 hrs. It. intiporda and Sgb. Palma
were killed, Food Supplies and clothing that were captured
were distributed to civilians and others were used by the sol-
diers, After this first raid, Lt. Zipagan and the men of the
late Lt, Antiporda reported to the CP of the 2nd Bn at Nueva
Viscaya while other enlicted men joined my outfit st San Nico-
las.

Our troops vere able to reoccupy Tayug, Pangasinan for
around 15 days inepite of constant enemy counter attacks. On
or about May 1, 1942, orders were received by me to report to
Bn Hq at Aritao, fueva Viscaya. Capt, Miguel Acosta, CO, army
of the Agno, tenporarily took command of my unit at San Nicolas
and Sgt Franciseo Casiano of the Tayug Detachment. During my
absence the enamy launched a strong counter sttack on or around
May 10, 1942 at Tayug. Our troops who were short ammuni-
+ions could not resist the enemy who were well equipped and
superior in number. The Tayug Detachment retreated to San Nicolas
and made another line of resistance thereat together with
the San Nicolas Detachment but the ememy did not go further on
their operations. Ho casualty was sutained on oru side but
three (3) Japs fere killed.

. Upon arrival from the BN CP on June 1, 1942, T reogan-
ized my unit to ite full strength as per orders from the Bn Cudr,
iy CP moved from Bo, Sta Maris to B. Dalumpinas, San Nicolas,
Pangasinan. Rigid training of the men particularly the Pt
volunteers was conducted. Information of enemy strength in oc-
cupied towns, location of enemy supply and ammo depots together
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with their communication lines and enmy activities were fur-
nished to Higher HQ through civilian Intellizence Agents and In®
formers.

5 A.mnushlng and harassing the enemy still went on regard-
less of our ha: s. On July 7, 1942 a combat patrol under

Sgt. S Caslanc encountered the enemy at the vicinity of

Tayug. Two Japs were killed and one enlisted man on our side was

killed. On July 12, 192 yush order was recelved by ne to >

reEorL at CP_2nd Bn, situated at Babdi, Pinzkian, Vueva  « m
Vizcava., Upon arrival thereat, the Bn Comdr showed me the 5
Fadiogram from General MoArthwr giving an 4US status to the

Lith Infantry. Another radiogren was shown to me that of v Glaliin
GColonel Nekar to GHQ accepting the AUS status as of July 14, & unm 2,
1942. After my induction into the AUS at Bebedi bogether uil 4 J, 7
with the other personnel thereat, I was given authority to Aiiss o
induct my Bil into the AUS. Thie induction was made in July **"(M,
25, 1942 at Delumpinas, San Nicolas, Pengasinan. TR

6. Lt Silvestre lMainas, the Ex. 0. of the Co. was as-
signed to command the Detachment at Natividad, Fangasinan.
His mission was to protect the Co, Hg from the enemy approach-
ing via Netividad-San Vicolas road. Training of the men was
compulsory and subnittings of daily -2 reports was required
of himg.

7. On the early part of September 1942, lay low orders
was received from the Bn Condr. This was due to intensive
operations of the enny against the hiding elements. Our ac-
tivities were devoted to training and intelligence operstions.
Our reports were submitted to B CP thru special runners and
nessenzers. Two of our rumners, Pvbs. Alberto Diza and Mariano
Handoc were catured and killed by the enemy at Sta. Fe, Nueva
Vizeaya while delivering reports to the Bn Gp at Nueva Vizcay
on September 12, 1942.

8. The "G" Co. continued ite mission until December 1,
1942 when the: Co. CP was ralded by Japs from Nueva Vizcaya with
Gonstabulary men and spies. Slight resistance was encountered
by the enemy. Pvts. ‘danuel Fontanilla and Calixto Boncato were
captured and kidled by the enemy. Enemy casualty was unknown.
After the raid the men were dispersed and reorganization was
made until February 1, 1943 when another contact was made with
HQ, 1jth Inf. At this contact the "GM Co, was redesignated to
M"HN Co,, then to HQ, Serv Co and finally to Combat Co. up to
the time the 14th Infantry was inactivated on November 15, 1945.

/s/t/ GREGORIO P, MONTEJO
aptain Inf.  AUS
(Former CO, "G" Co,, 14ith Inf, (AUS)
4 TRUE COFY:

GEORGE R PHILIP
Captain  cay
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\ HEADQUARTFES AFWESFAC
Check Sheet

Do not remove from attached sheets

File No. 1471 Subject; Investigation of ENRIQUEZ, Manuel.

(1) Investigetion TO: AUS Section 20 June 1946
Section

B The circumstances of this case are; Transmitted herewith is
file of Manuel F. Enriquez, former FA officer allezedly appointed in the AUS.

Request an investigation be made to determine whether subject's
activities subsequent to 12 ApTil 1943 warrent his being considered &
deserter.

Further request that report of investigation be submitted to this
section before 15 June 1.

Brief History of 14th Infantry, AUS, by Capt. Arturo Dingcong,
aUS, 0-888079.

A. Dingcong states that:

1) Original set-up of 1l4th Infantry, U
Reg CO--lajor Everett L, Warner
Ex 0 & CO, HBN--Capt. Manuel P. Enriques
€0, 2nd Capt. Guillermo Nakar
00, lst Bn--lst Lt. Warren Minton.

TE was:

Radiogrephic contact with GHQ, én\m)'resultad n promotions
Sekar, and Enriquez to major in January 1942,

ation of Units, 14th Infantry, in mid-March 194
Reg. CO--Lt. Col. Warner
2nd Bn. became HQBYN and Major Naker became Reg. Ex O

and CO, HQEN.

HQEN became 2nd En. under Enrigues.
1lst En. under Capt. Minton.

- In eaxly 1942 Enriquez wes proving hard to get along with.
This ic brought out by the fact that he was demoted, S0 to speak, from
Executive Officer and succeeded in those duties by Nakar. Further 1ight

is directed upon this matter by Minton, CO, lst En., 14th Infantry, in his
affidavit (on file in AUS Section). Minton states: "... Lieut-Colonel Warner

had spme differences with Major Mamuel P. Enriquez who up until March lsb,
942, had been Golonel Warmer's Executive Officer, these differences coming
about because Enriques had on several occasione sent his personnel messases

on the radio against Lieut-Colonel Warner's orders; that Lieut-Colonel

darner at about this time designated Guillermo Nakar as his Executive

Officer, and placed him in direct charge of the radio. "
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Conceming Enriquez! surrender.

4. TFacts of the surrender, according to evidence presented,
show that Lt. Col. Inriquez survendered t0 the Japanese forces at Sasuio
on 12 spril 1945 with about 20 men. He later tried to pereuade others
0 surrender.

B. Sources of evidence.

1) Col. Euesell W. Volclwan, 0-19537, Commanding USAFIF-

a) 6th Ind. 12 August 1945 from Eq. USATIP, NL to

Chief of Staff, FA: "Due to the fact that Mpjor Manuel F. Enviques deserted
bls command, the 14th Infantry, ks, and volutarily surrendered to the
enemy in april Tand Gue to the fact that this surrender hed most
severe effect upon the mozale and orgenlzation of the 14th Tnfanbry, BA
end due o the fact that after hic surrender and parole by he enemy Major
mnquez attempted t0 assume comuand of all units of North Lugon causing

a great deal of confusion and trouble in thie commend, this headquarters
can not recomend favorable consideration of any guerrills status of thie
officer. s/t R. W. Volckman, Colonel, Inf., AUS, Commanding."

b) Eadiogram from Col. Volckman to AFPAC, dated
51 Ocpober 1845 stutes thet Vollman recommends subject's allczed promotion
e recognized and that he further recommends termination of subject's
status as an officer as of 12 4pril 43 "the date which he deserted his
corrand and voluntarily su: red Lo the enemy later exerted effort
0 induce other personnel to

rrender. "

c) .\L‘mur" an interview with Col, Volckman by

F. Miller (sce 2

d) & ites of 14th Infentry
P4, for period during whick {antiquez wae comnected with the
organization. This history is signed cnriquez, who eucceeded Enriques
in commend of the 14th Infantry, FA, and who served under Enriguez prior

bo subject's surrender. A copy of thie history is on file with AUS Section,
Following are extrects from this history by Menriquez: "...Enrigues
deserted the command upon his surrender to the Jape on 12 April 1!
Bagulo. Menriquez aseumed commend ........ When Enriquez gave mrnsn‘ up
o the enemy on 12 April 1943, most of the officers and men of his newly
organized 3rd In. weat with .." Aafter subject's surrender and release
and after he orgenized the NACOCO etore in Paguio, Manriguez had this to

say of the subject and his "NACOCOM unit; "...this organization for awhile
created a friction with the USATIF, ML, for Enriquez kept insnuating of

hie command ctatus of the Northern Luzon units when he conaidered himself
the senior officer of Northern Luzon notwithstanding his surrender status.,"

) THE TRIEUNE(true copies of all articles mentioned
here eve enclosed with this report.)

1 april B, 194
of guerrillas in Northern Luzon,
nine days before his officlal surren

en article concerning the surrender
} nriguez' name ie listed (this is
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2 Aﬁl 27, 1545—-111‘12!619. which etat¥® his good
feeling for the Japanese.

April 26, 1945-—-articles concemning I
his families gratitude, his urging others o surrender,
One picture shows subject sected, in civilizn clod
officers; second picture shows subject wi

nriquez! surrender,
2 tuo plotures.

£) NIFP , Tokyo, 3 Juze
the same as those sppearing in the Tritune.
in subject's 201.

&) A-tostersof the 1
1945 at Dagabag, Nueva Vizeaya,
offibers in the 1dth Infantry US
of the United States, July 1!
GHQ, SUFA... %
12 April 1943

ed by 1. Arturo Ding
TIF, when it was Fedralized into the Army
2 as per rauim'raphic instructions from

¥ 1 071 eurrendered

ong; 'List of

8. Status of subject after 4pril I?, 18

subject i

frer 12 April

B. Further reference is made o
of the 14th Infantry, Fa, in which he states:
of the capture of Col.
who vas tak ap
From available ect's wife was apparently used as
a tool by the Japanese in buu» riquez® surrenders. Col.
Volckman himeelf (see 201) had reason to believe thet Mrs. Enriquez was
at least partially respomsible for Enriquez? surrenders. Subject's wife
resided in Beguio, and, acco %o her own affidavit, her husl
released the very day he surrendered and proceeded to set up the Nacoco
store in Baguio. It is apparent that subject 1ived
this period and thet he Teceived ery gain fron the store. These
facts tend to show that the subject was not actvally "miseing" of 3
in action” after 12 April 1943, since he was living at home under normal
condi tiong,

6 was

&

C. In February 1944, at which time =ubfect vas supposedly
arrested for guerrilla uctivities and later executed, , for a time,
imprigoned in Bilibid with oter officers, wh

gho_were af: £1110tes 11 th iz i
#HB Nacoco bueiness. Amdng these officers were: 1st Lt. Francieco de Leon,
Ceptain Thomes acop, Lt. Joel Senot, and Sgt. Miguel Velasco. Derogatory
matdon concerning the above as listed in CIC files under 100708K—

Civ. BlacKlist is as follows:

1. Francisco Deleon--spy.

2. Capt. Thomas icop—adop's Place, Tublay, Spy, informer.

3. Joe Senot—Guisad, Baguio, Scrap Iron dealer

4. Manuel Enriguez--Lt. Col.; Commanding remnants of 14th
Inf. PA after capiure of Col. Yakar; captured in Manila January 1944; re
Ported frec n Mantla and taking his 5 o

Spiritual Training" Coursge a4
e a




Ceabanatuan.

5. Miguel Velasco--GST member, Jap Regiment (not
constabulary)

ie evidence chows t
1y bed other bu i
z seme period (immediately after the origin of
april 1945) that the subject was active apting t0 cause other
1rrender,

coco store

affiliated with tt
Bh

4. Conce

ing subject's premotion to Lt. Col.

4. General Orders
to confirmstion *
East, Major
porary rank

» dtd 1 Oct. "Subject
ione Forces in the Ta

reby promoted to the

eptenbor 29, 1942,,, .1

9 General, U
1 F; Bnriquez, 0-1450 (B4)
of Lieutenant Colonel effective

B. Volckmen recommende recognition of G. 0. #1 above.

C. To evidence has been presented to show that above promotion
was ever confirmed by an author party; however subject apparentls were
the xank of Lt. Col. and was lnewn as Lt. Col. Enriques from the daty oe
sald prozotion wntil his surrender on 12 April 1945,

Concerning subject's AUSstatus

A. according to

ingeong in hie “Brief Fistory, 14th Infantry,
ATS:

) The 14th Infentry contacted Gen. MecARTSUR in Australia
on or about 29 June 1942,

2) On or about 14 Jvly 1942 a message from MACARTHUR was
recelved directing Col. Nakar thot he mizht induct the PA troops under
his command into AUS effective 14 July 1942.

8)  Subject was commanding officer of the 2nd Pn, 14th Inf,
Fh with the renk of Major (Fa) at the time AUS indnotions wewe effective.

. Fron available evidence if would appear that the subject
was inducted 1nto AUS as of 14 July 1942 with the rank of Yajor. He sub-
foduently assigned as AUS serial nusber from 4 block authorized by Gen,
Hacarthur; nanely 9-888071.

6. Sumwary of Investigation.

4. Prior to 12 April 1943, It is believed:
1) that subject was an active &uerrilla until his surrender
to the Japenese Imperfal Forcee in April, 1943.7
4 That subject was inducted 1nto AUS as of 14 July 10427

1042 by Golonel HoRls, "BEISEPIGE T IRPIDESERLET 0 Lt. Col. ae of 20 Sepe.
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B. Subsequ nt to 12 April 194Z. It is believed:

d4id 0 without varning other officers within his or higher comn nds, that
he further attempted to cause otherc to join him i
upon his release in Ba uio he caused confusion and depressed m
| the guerrille unite df Northern Luzon.

: \
[ 1) t subject deserted his commend on that

‘ |
\

and that

2) That subject lived in Baguio with his family, operated
the Nacoco store there, and led a normal life.

3) That after 12 april 1943 his attempted guerrilla act
ivities were more detrimental than bemeficial to those guerrillas who ha
not surrendered.

| 4) There is no evidence thet subject was arrested in early
1944 for guerrilla activities. Rather does the evidence point out that he
and his associated of the Nacoco -'ore te for the Jupenese as

or the g\xerrillas an

| Base pay (1 April 42 to 30 Auvgust &
Qarters 4 ce (came date)

2) The widow has reccived pay due the
period of 23 months. How dence kere
Entiquez is believed not tatue artcv

ould that the w 17 m
Lt

. If subject's promotion to
in pay would begin as of 29
would st0p as of 12 April 1943. The widow woul
amount of pay than would be due her.

Initialed: RJE

4 TRUE COPY: 20 Sept 49
: Ll
CHN L. GOODE
lst Lt  INF

Chief, *nvestigation Sectiom Q% '
DW o w~ ool f“b‘ %m
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United States Forces in the Fhilippinés
BEADQUABTERS, GUERILIA FORCES IN NOBTHERN LUZON

IN THE FIELD
Octover 1, 1942
GENEFAL ORDERS)
)
No._ 1 )

1. Due to exlsting circumstances and the reported capture by the
enemy of Lt~Colonel GUELLERMO NAKAR, Inf., the 14th Infantry (PA) 1e
hereby placed under the Headquarters of the “nerrilla Torces in Northern
Luzon for tacticul and administrative purposes, effective September 29,
1942.

2. Subject to confirmetion by the Commandin GenPTal, United
Nations, Forces in the Far East, Major MANUEL P, IX » 0-1450 (PA)
is hereby promoted to the temporary rank of Lieute: anc Cn"onel effective

September 29, 1942.

IQUEZ (PA) is designated Comanding
NAKAR effective Septembe:

3. Lt-Colonel MANUEL F.
oOfficer, 14th Infantry (FA) vice L
29, 1942.

@

8/t MARTIN MOSTS

OFFICIAL: Commanding

s/t MARTIN MOSES
Lt-Colonel, USA

RUB COFY:  August 10, 1945

/8] Jose Velasco
/t/ JOSE VELASCO
1st Lieut. zuf., h\
Civil Affair Offic
66th Inf., PA, sieTe, ML

CERTIFIED TRUE EXTRACT COPY:

COP;/\ Sept'49

N GOODE

¢/ L. M. Rushmore 1st L&,
t/ L. M. RUSHMORE Chief, !nve-tibstlan Section

1lst Lt., I

@MW ia md».wd&toa&ww%
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Tje 14th Inf is a group of scatbered troops of the USAFFE consalida’ped
+in Hueva Vizcaya province on or about the first week of Jenuery 1942w .

datherlng vhat was left of the lst Dn, 7lst Inf, fist Div, Capt

Gulllerﬂu Nakar, Commanding Officer of the gallant battalion, Withﬂre tnwm‘d
Baguio. pursued by an overnhelmingly superior enemy force, Finding Baguio
already captured and ocoupied by the enmy, this intrepid warrior praceeded
across the Codillera mountsine overcoming all odds and difficulties that are
inevitably sttendant on jungle trails, and arrived at hriteo, Mueva Viscaya,
about January 8, 1942. Captain Nakar found that Capt Everret L terner and Capt
lanuel P Enrlquez were already trying to organize stragglers from the llth
Divison, 26th Cav (PS), the Headquarters of the lst Military Dietrict who were
unable to proceed to Bataan in view of the capture and occupstion by the enemy
of San Jose, Nueva Ecija, and ®ith a few civilian volunteers who were also
mustered or inducted into the service by lMajor Everret Varner. These three
gallant leaders undsunted by their being out off from the USAFFE trqops at Bataan,
pooled their men together numbering about 800 and formed themselves into a Unit
Thion was_temporarily designsted lst Provisional Guerilla Regiment by USAFFE HQ.
Contact With USAFFE HQ was established by radio which was brought down from
HQ, lst mhtary District, Camp Henry T Allen, Baguio City by Sgt Jose Cabanero
with the help of native cargadores.

This regiment as it will be seen later, was redesignated 14th Inf.,
USAFFE. The original seb up vas as follows:

Repimsmal COmmander - - - Major Evereet L. Warner
Ex 0 and GO, Hig Bn = = = = = = Capt Manuel P. Eariquez
Regt'l m co 1st Bn - 1st Lt Wareen A Minton

0, 20d Bn. = = = = - - - Capt Guillermo Naker
The location of the different Command Posts were as folhows:
Regt'l CP & Radio Station ~- Sto Domingo, Bambang, Nueva Vizcaya

1st Bn.-.---A----Dupax, Yueva Vizcaya
204 Bn - === === === Gomon, Aritao, Nueva Vizeaya

Radiographic contct was made with the General Headquarters of Gen
lachrthur, Gen MacArfhur's Headquarters cognizance of the existence of the
1st Guerilla Regiment and the courageous and unique motives which gave its
birth, resulted in the promotion of Capts Warner, Nakar and Enriquez to Major
and the commission of Sgt Jose Cabanero to 3rd Lieutenant about the 3rd week
of January 1942. The regiment was made to understand that its principal mission
was to harass the enmy and gather enemy information but that it was to pre-
serve its organization by discreetly avoiding direct contact with the enemy.
In other words, its mission was combat intelligence. For this purpose the
following assignments of sectors were mades lajor Nakar and his battalion from
Balete Pass to Bato Ferry; Headquarters and lst Battalion - from Bato Ferry
inclusive to Aparri. Ttching for action, the lst Bn on or about 13 January 1942,
raided Tuguegarao, Cagayan, Thie radi was undertaken in conjunction with Capt
Praeger's 26th Cav (PS), contingents of the 71st Inf, and few civlian volun
teers among them was Francis A Camp, later on commissioned. The splendid re-
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sults of this action were the killing of not less that 100 Japs, -and the
destruction on the ground of 3 Jap planes, General Headquarters, USAFFE,

was so pleased with the results that it commended and decorated all the
Officers and Ell that participated in the raid. There were minor subsequent
engagements of the troops but casualties inflicted on the enemy could not

be determined in view of the lack of means of verification attendant on hit-
and-run tactics. Enraged by these interminttent engagements and fervently
Gesirous to exploit the the rick sources of food supplies in the Cagayn Valley
the Japanese Imperial Forces made a determined effort to push thru and des-
trov the USAFFE forces thereat., This was about the srd week of January, 1942,
and the 2nd Bn then under Major Nakar was occupying defensive positions from
Banbang to Dalete Pass. Then there were reports from Regimental Headquarters.
to the effect that the Japanese were coming to the Cagayan Valley in two columns,
- one thru Highway No. 5 and the other thru the Baguio-Kiangan road, In the
last week of January, minor contacts with the feelers of the advancing Japanese
Colums up the Sen Jose Balete Pass road were made by the outposts of the 2nd
Battalion, At this time, there yas an incresse of aerila reconnaisance by the
enemy, On or about the 25th Of Yanuary, 1942, a message from lMajor Narner was
received by lMajor Nakar, to proceed to Beyombong with all his troops to assume
command of the regiment in view of the illness of both Major ”Vﬂrnex‘ and Major
Enriquez. Major Nakar, seeing the great possibility of hitting the enemy hard
from his vatbage positions, requested @eferment of the carrying out of the
order. The order being repeated the next day mas ignored by Major Nakar.

third order was received on or about the 27th in complieance xikhk of which
Major Nekar pulled out his headquerters and men from San Fernando and all the
position they occupied and proceeded to Bayombong, leaving only about a platoon
under Lt. Januario Longno to cover the withdrawal.

The 2nd Battalion tpoops arrived at Bayombong in the moriiing of the 28th
and Najor Guillermo Nakar immediately assumed command. 4 brief conference of
the Regimental Staff developed to the#ssuance of an order to move the troops
to Isabela. In view of the meagerness of the means of transportation, hte
available trucks and other vehicles shuttled the tpoops to Isabela. On the

the advance party of the Jap colum was engaged by Lt Loncna
ambanz, destroying one truck and one command car and killi
49 troops (Nips). -’hile this engagement was taking place, the movement tr)'mrd=
Jones continued. On the same day, Nipponese reconnaisance planes flew over
Bagabag where Nakar's troops were still in bivouac. The following day 7 planes
bombed Bagabag and Bayombong, hitting the Home Economics Building and the
market. Fortunately the troops were already far on their way toward Isabela

having moved at night on 28th January 1942.

Upon arrival at Jones, Isabela, on or about 2 Feb 42, the regimental
headquarters was established at Masaya vhere It Col Warner assumed command,
pubting back into operation the Radio Tranemitter thereat. The let Battalion
under Capt Minton encamped in Sinauangan, the 2nd Battalion under Major Nakar
at Daligan, Radio contact with the USAFFE Headquarters was resumed upon which
a message was received directing Lt Col Warner to cease the use of let Gue-
rilla Regiment and designated the unit as the 14th Inf. USAFFE, o

Shortage of arms, ammunition, medicine and other supplies was beinning
4o effect the operations as well as the health of the regiment. Inf response
to radiographic appeal for supplies, two planes dropped on 16 February 1942,
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a box of medicine, 2 boxes of ammunition Cal 30, two pairs of shoes for
Col Warner and Capt Minton and an envelope containing a CODE and other ins-
tructions. Telephone communication for intellirence purposes was established
in the provinces of Isabela, Nueva Vizcaya and part of Cagayen under It
ambrocio operated and maintained with members of the Regiment and insome places
by volunteer guards.

The 1st Bn under Capt Minton which wes mostly composed of civilian volunteers
spent its time in training its men. The HQBN under lajor Enriquez sent out
a few combat reconnaisance patrols and guarded the Regtl CP. The 2nd
Bn under Major Nekar was busy harassing the enemy and maintaining Tele~
phon commmication.

The following important events he 3 between February 15, 1942 to
the fall of Bataan, April 9, 1942:

A. - HQ BY Under Hajor Hanuel P. Enriquez;

1. - Maintainance of radio contact with HQ Gen MacArthur and Later
with Gen Wainright and sending in important intelligence
information gathered by the intelligence and combat patrols.

2. - Recapture of Bayorbong and killing of Miyamito, Japenese
Military Administrator for Nueva Vizcaya prowince on the
middle of March, 1942.

3. - Gathering of arms and swmunition from civilians
B. - lst Bn under Capt lMinton®
1. - Training of men;
2. - Gollecting of arms and ammuition,
3. - Constructing an airstrip at Palacian, Jones, Isabela.
G. - 2nd BN under Major Guillermo Nekar:
1. - Sending Combat intelligence patrols.
2. - Capture of 5 Japs at Sen Luis, Cordon, Issbela by a patrol

led by It Fermin Obina, Lt Bueno, and icting Officer Niicardo
Anbrocio, Later on commissioned;

3. Ralds by the len of Lt Januario Longno, Lt labunga and Tt
Rosario between Aritao and Sta Fe on the following dates;
30 January 1942, 12 February 1942, 18 Harch 1942 and 7 June

4+ - Second raid in Tuguegarao under Lts Obina, Dingcong, Reyes
and 24 men on or about larch 24, 1942, Result: Jap Guard
house was burned, killed and wounded an undebermined number
of Japa.
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5. - Capture of 1 Jap soldier south of Aparri by Lt Francis &
Camp in the last week of February 1942;

(A The killing of the 6 Jap prisoners by It Col E Warner and
Gapt Minton for attempting to escape uring the lst week
of March 19421

7. - Collecting of arms and ammunitions from civilians.

D, - Redesignation of Units, Lith Inf in the [liddle of March 1942:

1, - Regt'l Commander still Lt Col E L Warner;

2. - The 2nd Bn became the HQ Bi and Hajor G Val
Ex 0 and €O, HQBN

ar became RetL

3. - The HGBN of Major Enriquez became the 2nd Bn under lajor
lanuel P Enriquez;

4. - the 1st Bn under Capt Minton (no change);
5, - The Regimental CP moved to Usol, Jones, Isabela.

6 - The 20d Bn under lajor Bnriques moved to Tecaptured Bayombons,
Naeva Vizcaye;

E, - PROMOTIONS:

As far es T can remember, the following officers were promoted
by radiogram;

RANK 4ND Nal® 3 T0 H DATE ;3 AUTHROTTY
Wajor Everret L. Warner Tt Gol  February 1942 Gen llachrthur
1st It farrer iinton Captain  Februery 1942  Gen VacArthur
3rd 1t Tesoro Reyes 1st Lt 10 Feb 1942 Gen MacArthur
3rd It Januario Longno 1st It 10 Feb 1942 Gen HacArthur
3rd Lt Thomas Acop 1st It 10 Feb 1942 Gen YacArthur
2nd Lt Fernin L Obina 1st It 25 llar 1942 Gen Wainwright
2rd It irtwro Dingoonz 2nd 25 lar 1942 Gen Tainwrizht
3rd Lt Eulogio Bueno 2nd It 25 lar 1942 Gen Wainwright
3rd Lt Jose Cabanero 2nd It 25 Mar 1942 Gen Vainwright
3rd It Antonio Castro i 2nd Lt 25 1Bir 1942 Gen Vi wrisht
3rd It Enrique Cruz 2nd It 25 lar 1942 Gen Tainwricht
3rd Lt Benjamin Perdido 2nd It 25 MEr 1942 Gen Tainwright
3rd Lt Julian Perdigueros 2nd 1t 25 Yar 1942 Gen Tainwricht
3rd Tt Alfonso Sta Ana ond It 2 25 Mr 1942 Gen Tainwrisht
3rd It Pedro Vea 2nd It 25 Yar 1942 Gen Wainwright
2nd It Proilan Norico 1st It 1 April 1942 i
2nd Lt Leandro Rosario 1st It 1, April 1942
2nd Lt Nomeriano Valdepenas st Lt U, April 1942
374 1t Lope Cabauatan 2d It 14 dorll 1942

Lt

Froila B Parado st It 1, 4pril 1942 Gen "'E‘an‘tr’ht
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3rd Lt Vicente Carag 2nd It 1, April 1942 Gen Tainwright
3rd Lt Ulpiano Domingo 2nd Lt 1, April 1942 Gen Wainwright
3rd It Nariano Evangelista 2nd Lt 1 April 1942 Grn Wainwright
3rd It hlejandro Futad 2nd Lt 1/, April 1942 Gen Wainwright
3rd Lt Floro Ramos 2nd It 1, Lpril 1942 Wainwright
3rd Lt Juan Sabalboro 2nd Lt 1/ April 1942 ainwright
3rd Lt 4ntonio dela Cueva 2nd Lt 1, April 1942 Gen Wainwright
3rd Lt Rogerio Diesto 2nd It 1 April 1942 Gen Wainwiight
3rd It Toman Licayan 2nd Lt L, April 1942 Gen Wainwright
9rd It Juan Coma 2nd It 1, April 1942 Gen Wainwright
3rd It Pedro labunga 2nd Lt 14 April 1942 Gen "Ialnm'lght
3rd It Vicente Matias 2nd Lt 1, April 1942 Gen Wainwrig]
3rd Lt Gervacio Reyes 2nd Lt 14 April 1942 Gen ¥

3rd Lt Joel Senot 2nd Lt 14 April 1942 Gen Wainwright
3rd It Prescillano Velasco 2nd It 14 April 1942 Gen Wainwright
3rd Lt lanual T, Nery lst Lt February 192 Gen [

F. - Comnissions:
4s far as I can remember, the follo wing commissions were made

by Radio:
Civ Dr. Celso lesa 31st It DC April 1942 Gen Wainwright
Civ Dr, Vicente Florida 1st Lt MC April 1942 Gen Wainwright
Civ Dr. Miguel Castro 1st Lt MC April 1942 Gen Vainwright
Civ Ricardo B. Ambrocio Bﬁrd Lt 5 lar 1942 Gen lMacArthur
Civi Lean dro Rosario 20d It 5 lar 1942 Gen Machrthur
Civ Francis 4. Camp 2nd Tt Harch 1942 Gen Hachrthur
Sgt Harley ¥, Heib __ ond Tt Mareh 1942 Gen Macirthur

Capt Robert il arnold, SC (US4) reported and was assigned with the 14th
Inf as S-2 and Signal Offlcer on 10 4pril 1942,

4s a result of the surrender of Bataen, It Col E L Warner, Capt. Minton
and some of the 1st Bn Officers and Men left on 12 April 1942 for Casiguran,
Tayabas, after Col Warner had sent a radiogrem requesting Gen Waimwright to
send a destroyer to pick him up at Casiguran Bay. Gen Wainwright radioed back
directing Col Warner to stay with his comnand, Thie message was sent by rush
messengers to Casiguran but Col Warner, Capt ifinton and other Americans had
already boarded a reconditioned Jap launch with the intention to go to China,

nsslaned co Mth Inf by Gen ainwrighi Cap‘b R H Arnold became the CO 1Q BN;
Tﬁmmrmmff;m Hajor “anvel P Enriquez, GO, 2nd
Bn. 2nd Lt Arturo Dingcong was assgined Regimental Adjutant and was promvted
1st It on or about 25 April 1942 togather with 1st Lt Edmuno Navarro, Ex 0,
2nd Bn on same date by Gen Wainwright

On the fall of Corregidor, no radiographic instructions were received
from Gen Wainwright, Our Signal Off, Lt Jose Cabanero reported that the
Radio Station at Corregidor stopped all of a sudden and was no lonser on the
air, Radio broadcaste from KGEI, San Francisco, comnented that the order
of currender of Cen Wainwright which was broadcast did not sownd like the
natural voice of Gen Vainwright and further said that if it wae Gen Waimwight,

he wa; i
vas forced to doit or that he did it under duress, Jap plangg dr,
1 opped



surrender leaflets addressed to Lt Col Nalar., Lt Col Theodore “alakuka

was sent to contact Col Nekar in order to make him surrender but Col Nakar had
already decided to continue the fight end never to surrender. At this bime
the H: less one Company was in the Regtl CP at Qimmallabasa, Jones, lsabela
with "A", "C", and 1/2 fo "D! Company in around the surrounding barrios of
Jones, One Company of the HO BN under Capt Alfonso Baguno was in Cabagan,
Isebela, the other half of the "D Co. under It Francis A Camp was at Tuao,
Cagayen, and "2" Company under Lt Januario Longno was at San Fernando, Bambang
llueva Vizcaya. The Thole of the 2nd Bn under lajor Enriquez was spread out
fron Santiago, Tsabela to Bambang, Nuéva Vizcaye with the headquarters near Bayom-
bong

In view of the scarcity of food, the lack of sufficient arms, smmunitions
and medicine, and in order to easily hide the men and at the same time facili-
tate the gathering and relaying of enemy ifnormition for higher headquarters,
It Col lNekar ordered that the Officers and men not actually needed in the
Regtl GP, be tactically dispersed, Each Officer sent out was given a list
of the men under him. The men were.instructed to report secretly to their
Officers at least thrice a week or as often as situation demands. The Officers
were instructed to submit S-2 information at least three times a week to the
nearest contact station. & series of contact station was already in operation
in vwhich a contact station did not know hwere the messages were coming from or
where they were going to. A1l a Station knows is that it will only relay a
message to the next station and nothing more.

On 13 May 1942, the Regtl Staff, Redio Station, and around 70 EM and
10 off moved upstream the Cagayn River and estgblished its headquarters in a
small clearing about 5 Kms from Domsbato, Pinappagan, Mueva Vizcaya on 15
lay 1942, i

The period from 15 May 1942 to 15 June 1942 was devoted to the setting
up of the Radio Transmitter and receiver under It Jose Cabanero with the help
of Capt Arnold and Sgts Lebrojo and Domingo, Officers who were assigned in the
gathering of S-2 information were semt out to perfect the intelligence set
up as yell as the contact and relay station system, In the meantime the units
under “t Gamp in the Cagayan and northern Isabela province and those under
lajor Enriquez and It Longno in the province of Nueva Vizcaya were destroying
bridges and harassing the enemy who by this time had become too free and
careless in their movements makinz him an easy prey to our small mobile patrols,

On 16 June 1942, the Radio transmitter set was set into operation am
the delicate task of contacting a friendly station began, After long and care- -~
£ul deliberation on the procedure o be followed and the messages to be sent
in order to deny an enemy station from knowing our real identity and location
and at the same time positively determine that we are in contact with a friend-
1y station, the following plan was put into action: Our station was given
a call name vhich sounded like a Java word. It was to send a general call and
upon contact with another station, it will ask for the time and then give a
neseage asking the name of the wife of an officer whose ASN was so and so
(This ASY was the SN of Capt fobert H Arnold, USA) Tt will further request
that the word labuhay be broadcast over station KGEI, Sen Francisco.
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the last weck of June 1942, contact was made by our Station and the above pro-
cedure was followed. The time given by the station we contacted pointed
Darwin, Australia as its location. However, we were still in coubt, But,
about, two days later, the name of the wife of Capt Arnold and the word

MABUHAY was broadcast over KGEI in the evening. This was followed by

a Radio message from Gen Macirthur received on 29 June 1942 which partly

read as follows:

WLT COL NaKAR:

THE COURAGEOUS AND SPLENDED RESISTANCE MAINTAINED BY YOU
AND YOUR COMUAND FILLS IE WITH PRIDE AND SATISFACTION STOP IT
WILL EE MY PRIVELEGE TO SEE THAT YOU AND YOUR OFFICERS AND IEN
ARE PROPERLY REWARDED AT THE APPROPRIATE TIME STOP X X X X X
MAY AFFECTION AND BEST WIS!

MacARTHUR"

In & radiogram, Col Nakar retorted the strenzth of the regimemt which

was as far as I can rmember 62 officers and 960 enlisted men plus 3

Officers and 140 enlisted men of the Philippine Constabulary who were attached.
In one of the first messages from Gen MacArthur the mission of the

. Lth Inf was specified and that was to obtain and transmit intellegence

information to GHQ, SWPA, In order to accomplish this end, Col Nakar asked
Tor #5,000.00 to bé spent solely for intelligence purposes. ‘his request

was approved by Gen lacAr vbn the strength of this authority, civilian
S-2 agents were employed T ging from $50.00 to $150.00.
loweer, this agents were never paid on account of fact that no funds could

be obtain locally,./ Intelligence coverage was expanded to include as far

south as Manila and as far morth as Aparri, S5-2 reports were sent to Gen
Machrthur, covering all kinds of information about enemy movements, installations,
concentrations as well as the kind of treatment the Filipino and American
prisoners of War was receiving in the concentration Camp, The men and officers
set out for 5-2 work also carried with them a one-page mimeographed news raper
called the "SPIRIT OF BATAAN' and signed MATANGLATIN (Hawks mﬁ’ This paper
did not only serve as the only means by which the people were informed of the
true happenings of the war but also warned the civil population from aiding
the enemy in any form.

On 14 July 1942 a message from Gen MacArthur was received directing
Col Hakar that he may induct the Pi troops under his command into the Army
of the United States effective 1, July 1942, This same radiogram contained
the pay and allowances of US Army personnel from Pvt to Colonel. Same
Radiogran also had the ASN Bolck for officer and enlisted men to be assizned
to the 14th Inf AUS mmibrivemckSH, which are as folows: - For Officers- 0-88070
to 0-888169; for Enlisted Men - 10626000 to 10626999. This was immedistely cir-
cularized to the officers and men of the regiment (See inclosure) and the officers
and men in the regimental Command Post and vicinity were immediately inducted into
the AUS and given ASN, Capt Fermin Obina and Lt Julian Perdegueros were delegated
and sent oub for the induction of the men and officers of the Headquarters BN
and 1et Bn while lajor lanuel P, Enriquez was delegated to induct the 2nd Bn
which was at that time apread out in Nueva Vizoaya and eastern Panzasina,
In view of the distance and the difficulties of transportation and commmication
the induction was slow and delayed specially in the units of the 2nd Bn.



Cbl Tekar however, in order to be fair to all ordered that all induction be

dated 14 July 1942. Because of this he sent a message bo SWP4 stating that

all officers and men were inducted into the 4US on 1 July 1942, Lists

of all officers and Enlisted Men inducted into the AUS with their ASN

were kept in the Regimental CP together with the oaths of Office for

Officers. .
The present discrepancies in the assigndment of ASN for Officers can

be traced in this manner; In the first place the officers A4SN as was first

received by us had only two 8's or only 0-88070 - 0-88169, Take my case

as an example, I vas given ASK

N 0-88070 as a First Lieutenant and was recommended
for promotion with the same ASN.. 7hen the correction was made to 888070, I was
already promoted Captain and another seniority list was made, I was this

time assigned ASI 888075, I was therefore using ASN 0-88075 until I vwas given
an extract copy of SO promoting me to Captain wherein my ASN was 0-888079.

This istrue with almost all the officers. The only thing to do now is to
inform a1l the officers o use the firet 4SN given them adding one more i or

%o reassign serial mubers to officers whose serial mumbers were not reported
by radio to GHQ, SWPA,

In the last week of July 1942, a radiogram from GHO, STPA was received
inquiring es bo where perfomnel could be lended o contact the Lith Inf AUS,
This message was answered Tequesting information as to how the personnel will
bo landed - by perachute from & plane or by submerine, leanwhile a patrol

vas immediately sent to Cesigufran, Teyabes to esteblish on oybpost and a recep-
%ion point to receive the persomel if they will be landed by submarine.

Eadiogran was received promoting the following officers effective 20d
August 1942 to ranke as folbows:

70 BE MATOR TO BE 1ST IT
Capt Robert H Arnold 2nd 1t Harley F feib

70 BL CAPTAIN 2nd It Honorio Quines
1st Lt Fermin Obina nd 1t Julian Perdigueros
1st Lt Arturo Dingcong : nd 1t Eulogio Buens
1st Lt Tesoro Reyes ond Lt Francis & Camp
1st It Januario Longno 2nd It Benjamin Perdido
1st Lt Juan Asuncion 2nd It Antonio Castro

2nd It Jose Cabanero

The following civilians who were long serving the unit acting as officers
sere as far as I can remember commissioned 2nd Lt in the Army of the United
States on or about 9 August 1942 :

“ospicio Tabilangan tario Gonzales

One of the last messages received on 12 August 1942 from GHQ, S"PA before
the Radlo Station vas dismantled due to the reports that the enemy had located
the stabion and was sending patrols to capture it was one which asked for the
order of battle of the Japanese &rmy in the Philippines, This message was
never ansvered. The radio set, after SUPA was duly notified that comtact will
be resumed on the 27th or 28th of hugust 1942, was dismantled and together
with complete set of records was phaced in a big Galvanized Iron tank and buried

in
in the ground near the egge of the forest. Two other sets of records were oiled



placed in small cans, and burried about 200 to 300 yards inside the forest.,

Seglnning the £irst of July 1942, hte Japancse Imperial Army after it
falled to get any results in inducine Col Nakes tg surrender, launched the
Gost intensive and systematic mopping up operations againgt ihe troops of
$ol Neker in the Cagayan Valley. These operations aore conducted by Infan-
Sy troops, planes, Japs ani Filipino IP's and Ganaps and pon marked ' th
indiserininste hombink, imprisonment of suspected persons, torture, and atroci-
ties of the nighest order, However, the Japs did mot gain mich headway in

gaining of correct information ahout the whereshouts of Goi 2
his ‘roops. In retaliation of the abrooit
becanse of the increased obst;
S-2 information, our ratro

bl
es comritted by the Jape and partly
les to be overcomed in the securine of valuahls
d to fight it out with the Jape resultinz to
last week of July some
ittle more knowledge than they should
ptured. ILt. Leandro Rosarin one of the
£ vere able to visit Col Nekar in our Regt'l GP at Domabato
Pinappagan, lueva Vizeaya surrendeved to the Jars in Bayombong and was reported
Lo have been very close to the Japs. These events lead to the dismantling
of the radio station and the burying of the records as wae previonsly men
On or about 25 August 1942 approxinately two comanics of Japs occupied
Pinappagan, Nueva Vizcaya. Two days before the srrival of thg Japs however,
Col Nekar issued orders that no fishting should be done in Pinappagan and
that everybody should pretend to be civilians, Lt Jose Cabanoro was left
near the place where the radio and records were buried and T with Major £
Arnold, Lt Heib, two other dmerican soldiers and around 35 Hlf about half of
whon were sick ‘laria, encamped about 5 kilometers from our re+imental
COP, 4 day before the Jape arrived at Pinappa:
near Jones, TIsabela. His intention ch the Jepanese more closely
in order to be able to determine what Japs knew about Pinappagan and
Sheir plans. On 28 Auzust 1942 the Jeps left Pinappagan for Jonoe but mem
turned two days later with a bigger force and with Lt. Antonip Castre and our
old rezimental CP wes raided by the Javs guided by Colcol, Finding the
Camp enpty, the Japs burned all the shelters., grond moved out to another
secret place known only to 2 or 3 o ns. But one of pur contact men
by the nane of Del Rosario, & PG soldier, was captured without our Xowledge
and afber he was tortured, he guided the Japs to our bivouac area on 1
Sept 42. Early on the morning of 15 Sept my csmp was raided and after a
short encounter between the Japs and our men that covered our withdrawal, T
2 of my soldiers who were sick were surrounded in a thick bush and
taken prisoners. Sgte Pablo Villanobles and roza who were too sick to
run staved behind and fired at the Japs until they were killed. Casualties
on the side of the Japs could not be determined,

oned,

n, Col Nakar left for a barrio

I was taken to the Jap garrison at Pinappagen and was investigated
and tortured as sim I refused to give any information. Only the people of
Pinappazan Major 4rnold, and Colonels Warner and Kalakuka vho later on visited
me in my cell could tell how I was tortured as a result of riy refusal by aive
ont the secrets of the regiment, On 17 Sept 1942 Lt Leandro Rosario arrived
at Pinappagan with Col Ide and a reziment of Jepanese soldiers, Rosario
delivered speeches tellinz the people that they should cooperate
Japs and reve:1 the secrets of the 14th Inf,
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&n important fact here has o be mentioned as it was responcible for the
dapture of Col Naker, the radio, the records, and the surrender of some of
the officers and men. This fact was that Lt Résario founded he town of
Pinappagan and his words were very mich respected b tho people, However
the people tried hard to keep the secrets of the 14th Inf until Rosario

and the Japs gave out an ultimetum that all will be killed if no one will
tell he truth about %he radio and Col Nakar. The people softened and with
the squealin- of an Aglipayan priest hy the name of Castillo the radio was
located and dugged out by Rosario and the Japs on or about the last weel of
September 1942, The capture of Col Nekar in & cave near Minuri, Jones, Isa-
h»la on 29 September by the Japs with the help of Sahaluce (c\iP" of Dohce

£ Jones) and 300 Ganaps followed. Lt Rosario once hoasted to me in my

prlson cell that he was going to get a medal from the Emperor for the cap-
ture of Col Neker and his radic, Lt Rosarlo and his co-spies who received
nedals for the capture of Col Nekar and the ra i i but
they all disappeared hefore the US Arme retirned to the Philippines to give
them a chance to assert that they were not spies, traitors nor collsborators.

The other two sets of records buried in the forest mwere aceording to
rliable information also found by the Japs in one of their excavation pat-
rols to our GP in which Colonels Warner and Kalakuka were present. The Japs
in these cxcavation patrols used from 200 to 300 éivilians with an equal
= of Japs and with crowbars and sharpened stcks iy cinity
of our old CP for buried records, supplies, eauipment, and valuables. They
did this for almost two weel g seriod, they gob prac-
tically everything exeept the buried can where the radio tfes, erystele,
codes, snd other imeor p he radio set were placed. This can wes
later on accidentally duz out by c: ans ahout 2 years after but the con-
taing were already decayed.

a

f

On 23 Octoher 1942, all the Javs in Pinappazan moved down to Jones,
Teabela with all their prisoners namely: ILt-Colonels Tarner and Kalakula,
Lieutenants Zeigler and dntonio Castro, the two soldiers who were captured
with me, Judge Catalino Valbuena of Pinappagen who was our $-2 agent and
who never squealed in -pite of she severe torture he received from the Japs,
and mreelf. Judge Valbuena and the two €oldiers were bayoneted on the way
5 kns north of Pinappagan and before we Teached Jones, Lt Castro and I were
taken each by four Japs their rifles fixed bayonets to the Cagayan
River. When the Japs were about to bayonet me, I broke loose and ra
heard four shots and then I dove to the river and swam with the current
downstrean. I successfully evaded the Jap and Genap guavds on the way and
reported back to the camp of Major &rnold the following day 24 October 1042
ot Pinappagan, Nueva Vizeaya. From 24 October 1942 to September 1944, laf
4rnold commanded the remnants of the lith Tnf, AUS who were hiding and hed
never surrendered between Jones, Teabela and Pinappagan, Nueva Vizcaya.
This group consisted of 8 officers namely: Yajor Ar-old, Lts Hialey 7 Heib,
Leonardo Galima, Gervacio Reyes, Enrirue Cruz, Pedro Vea, Beja min A"ﬂes,
mreelf and ahout 60 enlisted men. This group under Major arnsld wes aly
busy evading the ememy. Thie was because in the rosters that the Japs were
able to capture, they conld E T fht bhavs wie gany more officers who were
not yet accomnted for including Major Arnold, Lt Heib, and Pvt Yangemelli
all Americans, The enemy which sometinee reach ss many as £00 Japs and
Ganaps were always busy patrolling Jones and Pinappagan until August of




1944 vwhen the last garrison of Japanese and BC soldiers vwas pulled out of
Pinappagan. In this extended mopping up operations the Jape ‘siffered mich
as many died of malaria and equipment and supplies were destroyed of lost

expecially when they have to cross the rivers during floods.

Unite of the 1th Tnfantry under It Joaquin Dunoan fought the Japs in
the Halliz region of Isabela until the middle of 1943 when it had to sus-
pend its operations due to lack of arms and ammnitions. Lt Francie A Camp
in Cagayan also carried on the fizht until he was captured sonehimes in 1943.
The 2nd Bn under Major Wanuel P Enriquez contdnued defying the Yape in eae-
tern Pangasinan and Nueva Vizcaya. 'hen Maj Enriquez surrendered to the Japs
at Baguio on 13 4pril 1943, Capt Romulo & Manriquez who had joined the 2nd
Bn and was at this time the Ex 0, assumed command of the 2nd Bn. The 2nd Ba
under Capt “anriquez (now a Lt Colonel and studyinz at Fort Leavenworth)
continued the fight and grew into a little less than a regiment so that when
Col Ruscell 7 Volckmann organized the USAFIP, NL command, the 2nd Bn, 14th
Inf, AUS became the 14th Inf, USAFIP, IL.

~

In Jenuary, 1944 Major 4rnold received a message from Col Volckmann
requesting him to report to Col Volckmann's Headquerters. Major Arnold,
however, mas not _able to get out of Pinappagan due to the presence of large
enemy troops still around Pinappazan and Jonee. In the first week of Octo-
be 1944 situstion eased up and laj Arnold seeinz the need for more man,
inducted around 40 men into the Army of the United States. These men were
picked in recognition of their loyalty and the great sacrifice they had
made for the preservation of the l4th Inf, 4US.

Sometimes in the middle of October, 1944 Maj Araold left our mnit in
Pinappagan and Jones in order to confer with Col Volckmann as o who should
comnand the 14th Inf, laj Arnold's intention was to vet back the command of
the 14th Inf inasmuch as he wae the most ranking officer left after Col
Naker was captured. The otcome of the conference vwas however, the assign-
men of Vaj Arnold as CO, 15th Inf, USAFIP, NL and the incorporation of the
1th~Inf, USAFIP, VL on 28 October 1044, From hereon the activities of the
remnants of the 14th Inf, AUS who hed joined the 14th, 1lth, 66th, and 15th
Inf Regts of USAFIP, NL can be gathered in the battles that these regiments
Fought in the liverstion of the Cagayan, Isabela, Nueva Vizcaya, “angasinan
and Ilocos provinces of Northern Luzon.

The 14th Inf, AUS lost its identity with the organization of the
USAFIP, ML as the scattered officers and men could no longer be grouped
together in view of the presence of spies and Japs, the need for immediste
action, and in order o avoid friction among the different regimente wiich
officers and men of the 14th Inf AUS had joined. In my humbleopinion
the officers an men of the 14th Inf, .US under Col Guillermo Nakar had made
& worthy contribution in the organization and successful operations of the
various units of the USAFIP, NL command under Col Jolckmann especially in
the 14th, llth, and l5th Infantry Regiments.

/s/t/ ARTURO DINGGONG
Captain, Inf, AUS
4 TRUE COPY: 0-288079
22 October 48
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ORIGIN AND BRIEF HISTORY OF THE ENRIQUEZ G {TLLAS

On 23 December, 1941, the forces in Bagiio were ardered tu
take tre Mountsin Trail via Bontoc through Nueva Viscaya in
order to avold the enemy blocking the Kenon and Naguilian Roads.
The US Forces were under the commrd of Colonel John P. Horam,
USA, tlen the CO of Camp John Hay. A majority of the troops
passed tirough Bukod, lit. Province while the rest passed throgh
Fiargan to Nueva Viscaya. Somewhere in Aritao, Nveva Viscaya,
tre American officers (Theee were tw other Cols) decided to
disband the ir forces as they were informed that the Japs had =
already reached Tuguegarao and San Jose, Nueva Ecija and were
on their way to Nveva Viscaya.

It Col Manuel P. Boriquez, GSC, then G-2 of the 11th Div
who was one of those cut off in Bagu io decided to go agains he
ers_to_th can 0 B ®iaetens colBuTed all Te
i ammis te mould gather. The men were mostly from the rem-
Pants of fhe 1lth and 12th Inf Regiments, personnels of the
Dis trict Headquarters, st ID and sone mn from the Command and
Staff School in Baguio. -

A Battalion was organized by the then Capt Manvel P. En-
riguez together with Capt. Edmund o Navarro, then 2nd Lt. The
1st Bn Staff was crganized as follows:

Capt . Manuel P. Enriquez
o Lt. Bdmundo G. Navarro
2md Lt. Meliton P. Bulan
3rd Lt. Honorio Quines
3rd Lt Manuel T . Nery

411 these of ficers were regular officers and umer their
guidance and supervision, the Battalion took shape again-as a re-
Elar fignting outfit. fhis organization took place about the
Sarly daye of Janvazy, 1942. VWhile in the mocess of training,
Yajor Everett L Warner, 88th FA (PS) who vas Provost Marshal
b 0amp John Hay arrived at the CP with one (1) EM. Captain

his staff officers together and
Qe Maj Warner to commm the Battalion. At
frged stating that te did not know Wew much
Dbeing assured that he
icers he accepted the
t: eved to him as Bn CO. the meantire Captain
e ed at Aritao amd joined forces
S T aln Manvei P Enriqwz. There was a drastie changed
Sth the addition of this Bn so that th
follming set up was mde.
la) Everett L Wamer/
Capt Manvel P Enriquez
2nd Lieut Edmumdo G Navarro
2nd Lieut Meliton P Bulan
... 2rd Léeut Fermin Obim
... 3rd Lieut Manuel T Nery

Reglmental CO
EX-0 soibamasses
Rogt'l Adj ‘and 8-
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- 2nd Lieut Edmundo G Navarro
. 1st Lieut Warren Minton
.. Capt Guillermo Neskar

€O, st Bn
€O, 2 Bn

Wren Lieut Edmunio G Navarro left Bagulo City, he
beoyght with him the District Radio Transmitter, having
been tle District Adjutant of the 1st Military Dlstrict. With
this radio, our unit was able to get in contact with General
NacArthur in Corrigidar. As we were using the "First Guerrilla
Regiment" as our unists name, Gen MacArthur authorized our
unili to be called the 14th Ini‘" and promoted several officers in
rank,

The saga of the "14th Inf" is recorded witn GHQ, 5
It 15 a record of brilliant leadership and comendable oSeht-
ing as a unit and aid not surrender inspite of G rder to
surrender to the enemy. AL fhe tim o yERTeRTeLT er, the
Regimental Staff read as folloms:

coge Lt Col Guillermo Nakar?,
EX-0 . . Maj Manuel P Enriquez
Ady &'s-1l - 1st Liut Arturo Dingeons”
B - det Lot Jusnario o

o, HaBn . ¥
C0) Ist Bn . R R
co) 2nf Bn . > ¥aj Manuel P Enriquez

Upon the fall of Bataan, the American Officers left the
regtmrt m1th Tiout Col Warne® with btra protext of going vo
Casiguran, Tayabas to contact an American submarine. laj N:

Nho soxlaned e Bor i ves g Ex;0b mas reoncbedihy, V’aimu‘1ght Fam
made the CO. Maj Enriquez then was made the EX-0. No orders
were mde regarding the appoifitment of the other officers due

to persistent raids by the Japanes who were swarming them all
over Cagayan Valley.

On the last week of June 1942 the l4th Inf was able to
contact SWPA ahd was followed by radio message from Gen Mac-
Arthur received on 29th Jure 1942 which partly read as follows:

Lt Col Nakar

The courageous and splendid resistance maintained by you and
your commnd f£ills me with pride dnd satisfaction stop it
will be my privilege to see that you and your officers

and menare properly rewarded at the appropriate time stop

MacArthur

On 14th July 1942 the message of Gen MacArthur was received
directing Col Nakar that he may induct the Philippine Arm

Troops under his commnd into the Amy of the United States (AUS)
effective 14th July 1942. Thus Col n.,k.u-, Maj Enriquez and their
mn stop to exist as PA Officers and men and became integral

part of the Army of the United States.

=2 a
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Col Nakar was captured in a cave near Minury in Jone
Isabela on the 29th September 1942. Major Manue{ P. Em‘lquﬁz
took over the command of the 14th Inf AUS vice Lt Col Nakar
ard was mromoted to the temporary rank of Lt Col effective
29th Sept ember 1942 by Martin Moses, Lt-Col,

Lt Col Manwel P Enriguez continued defying the Japs in
Nueva Viscaya and Pangasinan until 13th April 1948 when he and
some men forced to surrender to the enemy after being surrounded
by a Bn of Japanese at Tuba, Benguet, Mt Province.

Lt Col Manuel P Engiquez yas released by the Japanese Milita-
Iy Police in Baguio after his surrender to attract his men but

with a condition that if they find him again doing things against
the Japanese Forces, they will execute him without any trial.
However Lt Col Manuel P Enriguez was not undaunted by this threat
as he called a meeting of all officer in Baguio about June 1943

and instructed them that the resistance was to continue but in a
more passive manner. It was understood by all his officers that
they will carry instructions just as if he had not surrender.

To enable the men in the mountains to carry on the resistance,
it was dediced that a store be established in Baguio to facilitate
those concerned to collect money, food, clothing and medicine
without the enemy suspecting the real purpose of the organization.
Lt Col Manuel P Enriquez with the aid of Capt Jose Ma Alvarez,
an influential Business man from Manila and member of Nacoco,
got the permission of the Japanese MP to put up the store which
was to be a subsidiary of the Naceco and named it the Nacoco
Store. The MP's believing that this was to help those "mis-
guided ele ments" authorized its formation. The store flourished
inspite of the restrictions P]aced upon it by the UP's as a
majority of the population of Baguio knew somehow or the other that
these was for the benefit of those in the field, so that they
bought goods lavishly from that store. All members were
forrerly EX-USAFIE and Guerrillas and with Col Enriquez as
manager the store became one of the most successful in the City.
This stae also became the message canter for all instructions
emanating from and going to Col Enriquez.

The following formed the personnel 66 that store:
Col Manuel P Enriquez . Manager

Lt Col Nestor P Reincso .o Asst Manager
Capt Santiago J Resurrecclcn... Treasurer

1st Lieut Antonio Estepa... Bookeeper

Capt Emiliano Ramirez ..... Salesmn

Capt Antonio Garcia.. Gy

Cept Emilio Borromeo . .o =do-

Capt Felizardo Tanabe . . =do=
Melanio Lara . =do=-

1st Lieut Francisco de Leou + =do-

2rd Lieut Andrew Douglas ...... -do=-

2nd Leut Miguel C Velasco ..... =do=

CE
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Gol Nanuel P Enriques and some of his officers and men wers put,
in th8 concentration camp in Bongabong, Nueva Ecija in August 1943 but
were paroled on October 17, 1%3.

After Col Enriques! parole from the concentration cgmp on Oct.
17, 1943, he re-organized his staff as follows:

Col Manuel P, Enriques .
-1 &Ad] Genli,

Asst G-1
Asst Adj apt Felizardo Tanabe ~

20 s Liout-Gol NestorP. Reinoso
Asst G-2 Capt ose Ma “lvares
G=3.40 Yol Hanuel T Flores
Asst G-3, capt Vigente Gepte
Glynne Tt-Col _imson Valdes

Asst G4, pc An‘hniu Garela *

His £i01d Otiosss ows 2
Co, A1l PC Tttt < o i eyl o1 Clux‘n l.lnrdn/
Co, Kiangan 56ctor + « « « » « + o » oLt Col Gregorio Manalo~"

Co, Cagayan Valley Regt Col Marcelo Adduro—

Co, Bontoc Sector Naj Ali Al-Raschid —

Go, Tlocos R.egt Taj Madamba —

Go, 14th Inf Re 1t Col Romulo Manriques”
Co, K, Vizcaya Ssbotuge Ba. Waj Ramon Alcares —

#fith the formation of his staff and designation of his Gommanders
in the Field the Enrkques Guerrillas started functionigg again efficiently
as any well organized unit in the Phili ppines. Nonthly rosters of Officers
and Nen were transmitted thru the Nacoco Store. 4 radio transmitter was
brouth from Manila to Baguio by Maj Ali Al-Raschid, then Chief of Palice
of Baguio City, Intelligence reports were prepared and transimitted to either
Panay or Negros but those mesters and intellignece reports did not reach
their destination for reasors related in the following paragrapht

4 nan by the name or%%fg_\kruvaﬂ who turned out to be a
Japanese Spy succeeded in Tng his serviced withthe organismation .
Dby having hinself introduced by an American Officer by the mame of Gapt
BI11 Artbur, With a War Department Identification Card, several capbes of
1942 and 1943 magasines an Australian Fand Granade Several 1942 am-
omh minition and letters of CommanderChick Parsons,, he was able to convince
Col Enriques that he just arrived form Australia and was brought by a sub~
marine to act as the Chief Lialson and Intelligence Officer for all Gue-
rrillas, For /secrecy's sake he asked that he be known thereafter as CIO-12
He apparently had plenty of cash with him and his first gesture was to
give the organization P15,000.00, He was therefore able to get the secrets
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of the unit, In justice to Col Mamuel P, Enriques decision to accept
Reyes as a gemuine representatives from Australia, be it kmown that
the_identity of Franco Vera Reyes was first checked with the mother

in law of Commander Chic Parsons, a Mrs Jurica who verified the pen
nmanship of Commander Parsons, Other AeFicans were also investigated
and among those who testified to the Verasity of Franco Vera Reyes were
lrs Rev Stagg, Miss Wit of Emanuel Hospital and some of the members

of lrs Spaggs' church,

Franco Vera Reyes was a talkative man and when he started tell=
ing stories every one of them was checked, Capt Jose M, Alvares was
able to verify his stories about Messers Zobel and Elizalde and both
disclaimed any knowledge of Franco Vera Reyes, Maj Bdmundo G, Navarro
was able to dlg into his former records before the was and found ot
that he was a former embezsler and a crook who took advantage of the
nining boom, Capt Vicente Gepte was able to verify from Gen Vicente
Lim the stories told by Vera Reyss and which never happened. Other or=
ganizations who were introduced to Vera Reyes started to investigate
his activities and found that he was playing a double face game, By
this time Vera Reyes had given about six ty thousand pesos in receipts
to organization wheah were exchanged for Japanese wap Notes and out of
thAs he got about Thirty Thousand Pesos,

A hasty conference was called wherein it was decided that the im-
portand members of the command be made to take advantage of the Amesty
Proclaimation given by Iaurel's Puppet Government, This was arranged
by MinisterQuintin Paredes, Assemblyman Florendo Aquino andRaman Mitra
with the secretary to the President Mr, Pedro 3abido in order to save
the whole organization from beigh identified by the Japanese Military
Pdlice, This did not prevent the arrest which transpired a week later,
The first to be arrested was Capt Alvarez followed by Col Enriquez who
had just arrived form Tayabas with Capt Antonio Garcia, Lt Col Reinoso
and Capt Gepte and all the members of the Nacoco store in Bagulo were
arrested, Mrs Enriquesz was included in this arrest, Those who were able
to flee were Lt Col Manuel T, Flores, Capt Edmundo Navarro, Lt Col Sinon
Valdes, 1t Enrique Tayag, Capt Felizardo Tanabe, Capt Emilip Borromeo
and Capt Antonio Garcis,. This survivors fled to different Provinces and
Joined up with different units but some Were never included in recognized
rosters, Others went in hiding and were not able to contact their former
units, Those who were caught and later released after a few mohths in
prison were so weak and sick that they became inactive,

CGol Enriquez and some of ths men were reported executed in Fort
McKinley by the Japs on or about 30 August 1944.
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